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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (THE "GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be affached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities fraded on GEM may be more
susceptible fo high market volatility than securities fraded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.
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Chairman’s Statement FE#HE

The fiscal year of 2009 was a challenging one for EPRO.The Group
not only faced severe global economic downturn but also a slump
in local economy. Staring from the first quarter of fiscal year 2009,
the Group continued to implement different measures to cut down
operating expenses as well as reshape our business strategies.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Throughout the fiscal year of 2009, the Group put more resources
fo develop new market sectors in China. We had extended our
service coverage o second ftier cities in China and also added
new service in the area of Information Technology service
outsourcing.The overall revenue of the Group recorded a double-
digit increment over last year, representing the Group’s ability
fo secure existing business and enlarging income stream from
existing customers under unfavourable economic condition.

On top of that, the Group had expanded the professional service
team and equipped with new solutions to provide different
categories and level of IT services fo meet expectation from
different customers.

PROSPECTS

Based on the global economy trend and recent statistics in
China, it is believed that the economy will be furn around in
fime. The Group has prepared sufficient resources fo catch these
opportunities when the demand on Information Technology
service goes up again.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity fo express my gratitude fo all
management feams and our staff members for their dedication
and significant confributions in the past year. | would also like
fo express my sincere appreciation to all our fellow shareholders,
customers and business partners for their continuous support and
confidence in the Group.

On behalf of the Board
HUANG Shaokang
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 September 2009
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Review of Operations 235[E1EE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Review

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$66,984,000 (2008: HK$50,825,000), representing
approximately 31.8% increase in revenue as compared fo last
year.The increase in revenue was mainly due fo enlarging income
stream from existing customers.

The total operating expenses were HK$41,256,000 for the year
(2008: HK$41,405,000), representing o decrease of 0.4% as
compared fo last year. The technical expenses for the year
amounted fo HK$20,394,000 (2008: HK$16,781,000), the increase
was mainly atftributable to technical staff headcount increase for
the year.The administrative expenses for the year was reduced to
HK$20,173,000 (2008: HK$23,641,000) as a result of a number of
costs contfrol measures.

The Group recorded a loss atffributable fo equity holders of the
Company of about HK$3,419,000 or 1.02 Hong Kong cents per
share for the year, compared to a profit attributable fo equity
holders of the Company of about HK$1,713,000 or 0.51 Hong Kong
cents per share for the last year.

Capifal Structure

The Group generally finances its operation with internally generated
cashflows and banking facilities. The Group continued to exert
stringent control over treasury policies. The Company intends
to finance the Group’s future operations, capital expenditure
and other capital requirement with the existing bank balance
available.

As at 30 June 2009, the inferest rate of banking facilities was
charged at the range of Hong Kong prime rate ("P*)+1.5%/+0.5%
(2008: P+1.5%/+0.5%).

As at 30 June 2009, the Group had no bank and other loans
(2008: Nil).

During the year on 8 June 2009, the Company entered into
two subscription agreements to issue two non-interest bearing
convertible notfes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$25,000,000 (the “Notes”). Subsequent to the balance sheet
date, the issuance of the Notes were completed on 22 July 2009.
Details are set out in note 31 fo the financial statements.

Save as the above, the capital structure of the Company had no
material change.
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Material Acquisitions,
Investments

Disposals and Significant

The Company had no significant investments and material
acquisitions or disposals for the year ended 30 June 2009.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations
by internally generated cash flow and banking facilities provided
by banks.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group's consolidated shareholders’ funds,
fotal current assets and net current assets were HK$23,771,000
(2008: HK$27,107,000), HK$38,106,000 (2008: HK$39,746,000) and
HK$21,227,000 (2008: HK$24,424,000) respectively.

In respect of the Group’s fotal current assets of HK$38,106,000
as at 30 June 2009 (2008: HK$39,746,000), frade receivable (net
of provision for doubtful debts) account for 39.9% (2008: 11.2%)
whilst pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents accounted
for about 47.4% (2008: 73.1%). As at 30 June 2009, the Group'’s
pledged deposits amount to HK$6,600,000 (2008: HK$10,249,000)
and cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$11,462,000
(2008: HK$18,792,000).

As at 30 June 2009, the Group had no bank and other loans
(2008: Nil).

All of the Group’s pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in Australian dollars, Hong Kong
dollars, Canadian dollars, Japanese Yen, Renminbi, Singapore
dollars and United States ("US") dollars.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group had an aggregate composite
banking facilities from banks of approximately HKS6.6 million
which has not been utilised (2008: aggregate composite banking
facilities from banks of approximately HK$9.8 million which was
not utilised).
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Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2009, the gearing ratio of the Group as a ratio of
fotal borrowings to shareholders’ equity was 0% (2008: 0%).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs
in Australion dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Canadian dollars,
Japanese Yen, Renminbi, Singapore dollars and US dollars.

During the year, the Group did not enter any foreign exchange
forward contracts for hedging the foreign currency risk exposure
on making payment to the suppliers.

The Group requires all its operating units fo use forward currency
contracts to eliminate the foreign currency exposures for currencies
other than US dollars and on any individual fransactions in excess
of HKS$500,000 or equivalent, for which payment is anticipated
more than one month after the Group has entered info a firm
commitment for a sale or purchase.The forward currency contracts
must be in the same currency as the hedged item. It is the Group’s
policy not to enfer info forward contracts until a firm commitment
is in place.

The Group has no foreign currency contracts outstanding at 30
June 2009 (2008: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2009, the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of corporate guarantees for banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries in an aggregafe amount of approximately
HK$18.3 million (2008: approximately HKS$18.3 million). At the
balance sheet dafe, such faciliies were not ufilised by the
subsidiaries (2008: Nil).

The Group had executed performance bonds and advance
payment bonds of approximately HK$0.1 milion (2008:
approximately HK$0.3 million) in respect of certain services
provided by the Group.
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Charges on Assets

The banking facilities of the Group are secured by:

(i) corporate guarantees in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$18.3 million executed by the Company
(2008: approximately HK$18.3 million); and

(i) pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
approximately HK$6.6 million (2008: approximately HK$10.2
million).

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2009, the number of staff of the Group was 590
(2008: 279). Headcount increase comprised mainly new technical
staff hired to support the continuous expansion of the Group’s
business. Staff remuneration is reviewed once a year or as the
management deems appropriate. Changes in remuneration are
based on a range of factors including the Group’s performance,
the competitiveness of remuneration with the external market, and
individual employee’s performance during the year. Employees
were paid at fixed remuneration with discretionary bonus and
benefits of medical insurance, mandatory provident fund, share
options and necessary fraining.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies EER SR E

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of the
senior management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Shaokang (&4°%), aged 44, is the chairman of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for overall
strategy planning, management and development of the Group.
Mr. Huang has over 16 years of experience in the management
of various companies which invest mainly on the IT and electronic
industry. He has solid experiences in frade and business in the
People’s Republic of China, Singapore and Hong Kong. Mr. Huang
studied in the Physics Department in the University of Hui Zhou, the
People’s Republic of China from 1983 to 1986.

Mr.CHOW Siu Kwong (JEJE¥), aged 39, is the chief executive officer
of the Group. He joined the Group in 2000 and is responsible for
development of Group'’s software technology and methodology.
Mr. Chow has over 16 years of experience in the IT industry and
has worked for key IT solution providers before joining the Group.
He graduated from Victoria University (formerly known as Victoria
University of Technology), Australia, with a Bachelor's degree and
a Master's degree in Computer Science. He also holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration.

Mr. LIU Lin (#I#£), aged 39, is an executive director of the Group and
a director of Shanghai EPRO Software Company Limited and the
general manager of EPRO Systems Limited. He joined the Company
in 2002 and had faken up various senior positions in IT companies
in the People’s Republic of China and the United States before
joining the Group. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Computer
Science from the Beijing University of Posts & Telecommunications
and a Master of Science degree in Computer Science from
Columbia University, the United States.

Non-executive Director

Mr.YIP Sam Lo (¥ =), aged 62, is a non-executive director of the
Group. He joined the Group in 1992 responsible for the business
development of the Group. Mr.Yip has over 30 years of experience
in the IT industry. Prior to joining the Group, he was the regional
manager of a major U.S. computer company. Mr. Yip graduated
from the University of Texas, the US with a Bachelor’s degree in
Mathematics and from the Texas A & M University, the US with a
Master’s degree in Computing Science.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LU Wei (B)&). aged 52, is an associafe professor at University
of Science and Technology of China. He has over 18 years of
experience in financial management and many years of practical
experience in management consulfing for UN organisations and
other international institutions. Mr. Lu was working with a Sino-
Canadian Training and Consulting Institute since 1988 fo 1994,
He holds a Master's degree in engineering and a PhD degree in
the University of Science and Technology of China.
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Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (77#&1&), aged 46. Mr. Fong had obtfained a
bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a master's degree in Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fong has gained
more than 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
finance area and services the private and listed public companies
in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHANG Chung Wai (5&{%187), aged 44. Mr. Chang graduated
from the University of Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Computer Science and Statistics. He also holds a Master
of Technology Management degree in Information Technology
Management (MTM - [TM) from the Hong Kong University of
Science & Technology. Mr. Chang has over 20 years’ experience
in information technology field, of which over 15 years’ experience
is in finance and banking sectors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Chiu Hung, Alex (FR£3), aged 43, is the company
secretary of the Company, and oversees the legal, corporate and
compliance matters of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration, major in Finance. He has
been working with several listed and multinational companies for
over 15 years. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, The Institute of Chartered
Secretfaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Yuk Fong, Bango (REJ5), aged 40, is the general
manager of the Hong Kong operation. She joined the Group in
1998 and is responsible for managing project delivery. Ms. Chan
has over 16 years of working experience in the IT fields and has
worked for different enterprises covering the business domains
of felecommunications, finance and manufacturing. She holds
a Bachelor's degree of Information System, Commerce from
University of Western Sydney, Nepean and a Master's degree in
Project Management from University of Sydney.

Mr. HE Hua Guang (faf#3), aged 43, is the general manager of
professional services of the Group. He joined the Group in 1997
and is responsible for the development and management of the
Group'’s provision of IT professional services business. Mr. He has
over 16 years of experience in the IT field. He graduated from the
Harbin Institute of Technology. the People’s Republic of China, with
a Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical & Electronic Engineering and
a Master's degree in Engineering Management.
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Report of the Directors BEEEiRE

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
30 June 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14
fo the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2009 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group af that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 41 to 127.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year (2008: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as exfracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 128. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the
financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company fo offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 30 June 2009.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 26 fo the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s share premium account, in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed fo be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares. At 30 June 2009, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales fo the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 71% (2008: 49%) of the fotal sales for
the year and the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 47% (2008: 21%).

Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 83% (2008: 83%) of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 49% (2008: 28%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial inferest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) during the
year and up fo the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LIU Lin

Non-executive director:
Mr.YIP Sam Lo
Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LU Wei
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
Mr. CHANG Chung Wai

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’'s Articles of
Association, Mr. HUANG Shaokang, Mr.YIP Sam Lo and Mr. LU Wei
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company hasreceived annual confirmations ofindependence
from Mr. LU Wei, Mr. FONG Fuk Wai and Mr. CHANG Chung Wai
and as at the date of this report sfill considers them fo be
independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 10 fo 11
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings and reviewed by the remuneration committee on a
continuous basis. Other emoluments are recommended by the
Company's remuneration committee with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the result of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions and connected fransactions
disclosed in notfe 30 fo the financial statements, no director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any confract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were enfered into or existed during the year.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART XV
OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE
(THE "SFO")

A. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 30 June 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section of 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notfified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
(the "GEM Listing Rules”) were as follows:

1. Aggregate long position in shares and (in respect of
positions held pursuant fo equity derivatives) underlying
shares and in debentures of the Company and its
associated corporation(s)

a. Interest in shares (other than pursuant to equity
derivatives such as share options, warrants to
subscribe or convertible bonds)
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0)

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

the Company (i) ARA
Number of ordinary

Name of Director Notes Capacity shares inferested
EEpg (i3 & HAEREZEERYE
Mr.YIP Sam Lo (o) Founder of a discretionary frust 26,257,720
St REETZEBEA
Mr. HUANG Shaokang (b) Inferest of a controlled corporation 91,633,824
BOFRE RERAFER

() Beneficial owner 24,162,510

BEBAA

Mr. LIU Lin (©) Inferest of a controlled corporation 9,609,489
i RERARER
Notes: Mt

a. These 26,257,720 shares of the Company

were held by Araucarea Holdings Limited
("Araucarea”), a corporation wholly owned by
TUYF Company Limited as trustee of The TUYF
Unit Trust, a unit frust of which all of the units in
issue were owned by HSBC InternationalTrustee
Limited ("HSBC Trustee”) in its capacity as the
trustee of The TUYF Family Trust, a discretionary
family trust of which the objects include the
family members of Mr.YIP Sam Lo.

Accordingly, Mr.YIP Sam Lo, as a founder of The
TUYF Family Trust, was deemed fo be inferested
in 26,257,720 shares of the Company held by
Araucarea pursuant fo Part XV of the SFO.

These 91,633,824 shares of the Company were
held by China Dynamic Enferprises Limited
("China Dynamic”), a corporation wholly
owned by Mr. HUANG Shaokang. Accordingly,
Mr. Huang was deemed to be interested in
91,633,824 shares of the Company held by
China Dynamic pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

Apart from the above, Mr. HUANG Shaokang
personally owned 24,162,510 shares of the
Company.

Percentage of issued
share capital
HERTREED L
7.81%

27.26%

7.19%

2.86%

a. 26,257,720 AN~ @) g 15
i Araucarea Holdings
Limited ([ Araucarea )

Exi

F » Araucarea

ZTUYF Company
LimitedAThe TUYF Unit
TrustiEaEA S D 2 &
H 2 AT fiThe TUYF
Unit Trust/s —HE {5
o H2MBERITEMN
HSBC International
Trustee Limited ([HSBC
Trustee|) LAThe TUYF
Family Trustz 1 5 A

&

» ¥ B - The TUYF

Family Trustf] & —IE 2
BREET EXm AR
FREZHREZREX

=

At BEEHFERHE
& Bl EXVED - E=F %
H1EAThe TUYF Family
Trustz 8l it A R B
MRAraucarea & 2
26,257,720 A2 7 g 5
hEGE -

b. BREZHFRBEKOZE
XV# »+ China Dynamic
Enterprises Limited
(I'China Dynamic]) #
BARRNE291,633,824[%
By EM—EHREAR
mOREE - BAEBER
AMChina Dynamicft
48 .291,633,824 K~
AR P B ER °

B LS - B M
AFEF24,162,5100 K 1%
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c.  These 9,609,489 shares of the Company were c. WMEZFFLRIBEKDSE
held by Kingston View Infernational Limited XVE - Kingston View
("Kingston View"), a corporation wholly owned International Limited
by Mr. LIU Lin. Accordingly, Mr. Liu was deemed ([Kingston View])# &
fo be interested in 9,609,489 shares of the A A 29,609,489 i
Company held by Kingston View pursuant to m EE—ExzREAY
Part XV of the SFO. I o B AR AR

Kingston ViewFi#4E 2
9,609,4890% A< 2 & i 17
hHEA R -

(i) Associated corporation - EPRO Systems (i) HEEEE-SBEERHKBERA
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary A(ARRBI2HEL2EWE
of the Company) NS

Number of non-

voting deferred Percentage of
shares inferested in fotal issued
associated non-voting

Name of Director Note Capacity corporation deferred shares

RiEBEEHE HERTERE
BEE2ERE BELRHEH

EEpA Kt i) EERBEE BAL

Mr.YIP Sam Lo M Founder of a discretionary 5.112,991 33.86%

frust

E-BnA RET A

Note: B 5 -

1. Theseb5,112,991 shares of EPRO Systems Limited 1. 511291 ZFEXHZARA
were held by Araucarea, a corporation wholly 7 B 9 mAraucareafF B -
owned by TUYF Company Limited as trustee of Araucareaszz — @ HTUYF
The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit trust of which all of Company LimitedfE #AThe
the units in issue were owned by HSBC Trustee TUYF Unit TrustZ 57t AZ &
in its capacity as the trustee of The TUYF Family Bz ~8 - mThe TUYF Unit
Trust, a discretionary family trust of which the TrustR —IEBEM{EE B2 F
objects include the family members of Mr.YIP 2B 1T E L HHSBC Trusteeld
Sam Lo. The TUYF Family TrustZ {55t

ABH¥S - The TUYF Family
Trustfll /s —TEH 2 ERKET
EXH ABRE=ZBEEZRE
KA °
Accordingly, Mr.YIP Sam Lo, as a founder of The b REBEFSFRBEGROIE
TUYF Family Trust, was deemed to be inferested XV# - ¥ = B % 4 {E BThe
in 5,112,991 non-voting deferred shares of TUYF Family TrustZ &l A -
EPRO Systems Limited held by Araucarea W18 A& ¥ B A Araucareaf
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. B25112,91E 5B R HKHR
NAEREERER D 2 B -
b. Interests in debentures b. WNEFFZ#ER
The Company or its associated corporations had AN ) BY E AR B A B I M BT T

o

AN
not issued any debentures. fAIEH
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c. Interests in underlying shares (physically settled
equity derivatives)

() the Company

M

@

Pre-IPO share option plan

Name of Director Capacity
EEHRA 514

Mr.YIP Sam Lo Beneficial owner
EoERAE EmEaA

Details of the above share options as
required fo be disclosed by the GEM
Listing Rules have been disclosed in
note 25(a) fo the financial statements.

Share option scheme

Name of Director Capacity

ESnR 512

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
AT EnEAA
Details of the above share options as
required to be disclosed by the GEM
Listing Rules have been disclosed in
note 25(b) to the financial statements.

Beneficial owner

c. RHEBEOFTzEGZE(EVMRNTK

ALTETHR)
(i) AAF
() BRAFBEATEARE

Number of
underlying
shares in
respect of the
options granted
ERHBRESR
ZEERDEA

1,986,367

2

Number of
underlying
shares in
respect of the
options granted
ERHBRESR
ZHEERDEE

2,880,000

&l

Percentage of
the underlying
shares over

the Company’s
issued

share capital
HERMMEEAF
ERITREFDL

0.59%

iR Bl R LR A
HEEBRBE - BERE
A Imy NP e
25(a) °

g2

Percentage of
the underlying
shares over

the Company’s
issued

share capital
HBERMEARDQR
ERITREABEDL

0.86%

iR el R B AR A
REBARE 2 BRE
BRI IRERM T
25(b)
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(3) Convertible notes

Name of Director Notes Capacity

Esps i3 at

Mr.YIP Sam Lo (a) Founder of a discretionary trust
E-@EE ERETZERA

Mr. HUANG Shaokang (b) Inferest of a controlled corporation
U vind REBHA

Noftes:

a.

Mr.YIP Sam Lo was deemed to be interested in
82,644,628 underlying shares of the Company
which may be issued and allotted upon
exercise of the conversion rights attaching
to the convertible notes of the Company at
a principal amount of HK$10 million at the
conversion price of HK$0.121 per share. Such
convertible notes were held by Araucareaq, a
corporation wholly owned by TUYF Company
Limited as trustee of The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit
frust of which all of the units in issue were
owned by HSBC Trustee in its capacity as the
trustee of The TUYF Family Trust, a discretionary
family frust of which the objects include the
family members of Mr.YIP Sam Lo.

Accordingly, Mr.YIP Sam Lo, as a founder of The
TUYF Family Trust, was deemed fo be inferested
in the convertible notes of the Company held
by Araucarea pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. HUANG Shaokang was deemed to be
interested in 123,966,942 underlying shares
of the Company which may be issued and
allofted upon exercise of the conversion
rights aftaching to the convertible notes
at a principal amount of HK$15 million at
the conversion price of HK$0.121 per share.
Such convertible notes were held by China
Dynamic, a controlled corporation of Mr.
HUANG Shaokang pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

(3) AHBBEEE

Percentage of
Number of  the underlying

underlying shares shares over the
in respect of the Company’s

convertible issued share
notes issued capital
CRATRREE HBEROELRLF

PReABRNEE CRORAEHL

82,644,628 24.58%

123,966,942 36.88%

E-HEEERARERA
82,644,628 HHE R DR IEAR
Eme ZERHDDEBELRES
ROIVETITE AR AR S
%210,000,0007% Jt 2 A # f%
ERAWEz AiaEREA T
TR - BRAFTHRKREEH
Araucarea$i & ° Araucarea
J5TUYF Company Limited
LAThe TUYF Unit Trustfz 58 A
EMmEEHE AR MThe
TUYF Unit Trustd — BB ({Z
ft B2 HE BTSN HBHSBC
TrusteelAThe TUYF Family
Trustz EEA T O HEHA - The
TUYF Family TrustBll&2—1E%
ERGEGET  EZXHABRFEE=
EREZREKE °

it REFSHSRBE KIS
XVE - 2 = & {E AThe TUYF
Family TrustZ 8l#FA - R &
MAraucareaf 5 2 AR & A
MR EE RS -

HEOREERBRARARAA
123,966,942 18 B ik 1% +
HEhaEEZD  ZEBRM KA
B ERI2UB T E RS
%615,000,000/% Jt 2 A % &
ERAWMEZ AiegEEe T
TREH - EEATRKREEHR
China DynamiciFh - iR E
H K EE EHEXVE - China
DynamicJh & DR &£ 2 X
G
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(i) Associated corporation

No such interest was reported by the
Directors.

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in respect
of positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)
underlying shares and in debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation(s)

No such short position was reported by the
Directors.

In addition tfo the above, as at 30 June 2009, certain
Directors are holding sharesinthe Hong Kong subsidiaries
of the Company in a non-beneficial capacity, solely for
the purpose of complying with the previous requirements
of a minimum of two shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were
they faken to or deemed fo have under such provisions
of the SFO, any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) or any inferest which were required
fo be entered info the register kept by the Company
pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO or any interest which
were required fo be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant fo the required standard of
dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(i) TEEEE

BEEVES WA ER -

2. RARAREMBESEEZBRD R
(MBBRAVTET ARG ZER
mE)EERD RESH 2RE R

BEEWESHAARR °

B EXARES  R-BEAFNAZ
B ETEENEENERARAT
ZEBHBARFHERS - AFEE

WD ZRIIRFRARE -

BEXPETEEIN  REZBTAFEARA
=tR ARAESHEFERNTEHRE
RIFFEZ R EGROIEXVEFT R ES
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REH MHEGROIEXVER) 2 B
BEOREFTHEE (RREE %&Hﬁ
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B. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS B.

As at 30 June 2009, the interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under

FERR

R-BEAFAAZTE  REZTHRNE
WGhIE336MEMEARRTEZ B LMD
BRAR RN RARMR = 2 S LA A

section 336 of the SFO were as follows: O

1. Aggregate long position in shares and (in respect of 1. REAQAKRG R(HBERATETA
positions held pursuant fo equity derivatives) underlying EBEAEZERME)BERMDR Z2FR A
shares of the Company By
a. Interests in shares of the Company (other than a. RARBRG 2= (BRBRADT

pursuantto equity derivatives such as share options,
warrants to subscribe or convertible bonds)

STAMGIINERE  AIREZR
e RE S Al R AR (E 5 ) B RSN

Number of
ordinary shares

Percentage of
issued share

Name of Shareholder Capacity interested Notes capital

RRERE 5 ARG EERYA i ECRAREEAL

China Dynamic Beneficial owner 91,633,824 M 27.26%
EREAA

Ms.YIP ChiYu Inferest of spouse 115,796,334 2 34.45%

Ednrt fic@Biga

Araucarea Beneficial owner 26,257,720 3) 7.81%
EHEAA

TUYF Company Limited Trustee 26,257,720 4 7.81%
fZREA

HSBC Trustee Trustee 26,257,720 4) 7.81%
fEREA

Ms.TAl Fung Founder of a discretionary trust 26,257,720 4) 7.81%

HELT 2REETZERA

Notes: B3 -

1.  The interest of China Dynamic has also been 1.  China DynamicZ #zm I E R

ERIMBEESRHEERIIEXV

disclosed as inferest of Mr. HUANG Shaokang
in the above paragraph under “Disclosure of
Interests under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - Directors and Chief Executives”.

Ms. YIP Chi Yu was deemed to be inferested in an
aggregate of 115,796,334 shares of the Company
through interest of her spouse, Mr. HUANG
Shaokang.

The interest of Araucarea has also been disclosed
as interest of Mr.YIP Sam Lo in the above paragraph
under "Disclosure of Interests under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance - Directors and
Chief Executives”.

M EESE - EFREFNT
BIRBERELRAL 2 EE -

2. BEEMZTwWBEAEBERS
FELOREEZEZMRE
115,796,334 % 78 A &) f& 15 o

s -

3. AraucareaZ #Em B R ER
[1RI5EH BB IRHIEXVED
BREZ-EEREEAMTEIR
BRE=MEE S -
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These 26,257,720 shares of the Company were held
by Araucarea, a corporation wholly owned by TUYF
Company Limited as trustee of The TUYF Unit Trust,
a unit trust of which all of the units in issue were
owned by HSBC Trustee in its capacity as the trustee
of The TUYF Family Trust, a discretionary family frust
of which the objects include the family members
of Ms. TAI Fung. Accordingly, Ms.Tai, as a founder of
The TUYF Family Trust, was deemed to be inferested
in 26,257,720 shares of the Company held by
Araucarea.

Inferests in underlying shares (physically settled
equity derivatives)

Pre-IPO share option plan of the Company

Number of
underlying
shares in
Name of respect of the
Shareholder Capacity options granted
CREBRESR
REREE ) ZHEBROEE
Ms.TAl Fung Inferest of spouse 1,986,367
#HE Lt fofEigs
Note:
1. Ms. TAlI Fung was deemed to be interested

in 1,986,367 share options of the Company
through inferests of her spouse, Mr. YIP Sam
Lo.

Details of the above share options as required
o be disclosed by the GEM Listing Rules have
been disclosed in note 25(a) to the financial
statements.

26,257,720% & X & % 5 @A
Araucarea$¥ & + Araucarea
ZTUYF Company Limited
LAThe TUYF Unit Trustiz 5t A
EMEERE 2R WThe
TUYF Unit Trust/ —IHE {5
it B2 HEBITEMHBHSBC
TrusteelAThe TUYF Family
TrustZ EsEAF M HA  The
TUYF Family Trust8ls—1E2
EREERL EXmABER
Bzt ZzREKE - Bt &
Bl Z + £ BThe TUYF Family
Trustz &l ## A #W 8 &R
Araucareafi 226,257,720
AR DBIRD R REE R -

REBERG 2w (EMR A IRA
PTHETR)

() ARBFERAFRRAER

et &l

Percentage of

the underlying

shares over the
Company'’s

issued share

Note capital
HERMEEDT

ok BRTREBEIH

M 0.59%

ML

1. BRXTHABEBEE
BE=M 5 2 TR
AR T HI1,986,36715
S T2

FRRAIER EFRARE
AREZBREEEERY
BIRE I 25(a) -
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(iiy Convertible notes of the Company

Name of
Shareholder Capacity
BRRZE 27

China Dynamic

Beneficial owner
ExnBEAA

Ms.YIP Chi Yu Interest of spouse
gzt ForEiEs
Araucarea Beneficial owner
ERERA
TUYF Company Limifed Trustee
SN
HSBC Trustee Trustee
EFEA
Ms. TAl Fung Founder of a
discretionary frust
HEZ T —IHRRETZAIHA
Notes:

China Dynamic was interested in 123,966,942
underlying shares of the Company which may
be issued and allofted upon exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the convertible
notes in a principal amount of HKS15 million
at the conversion price of HK$0.121 per share.
Such interest of China Dynamic has also been
disclosed as inferest of Mr. HUANG Shaokang
in the above paragraph under "Disclosure of
Interest under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance - Directors and Chief
Executives”.

Ms.YIP Chi Yu was deemed to be interested in
the convertible notes of the Company through
interest of her spouse, Mr. HUANG Shaokang,
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Number of
underlying shares
in respect

of the
convertible

notes issued
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3. Araucarea was inferested in 82,644,628
underlying shares of the Company which may
be issued and allotted upon exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the convertible
notes in a principal amount of HKS10 million
at the conversion price of HK$0.121 per share.
Such inferest of Araucarea has also been
disclosed as interest of Mr. YIP Sam Lo in the
above paragraph under "Disclosure of Inferest
under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - Directors and Chief Executives”.

4. The convertible notfes were held by Araucarea,
a corporation wholly owned by TUYF Company
Limited as trustee of The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit
frust of which all of the units in issue were
owned by HSBC Trustee in its capacity as the
frustee of The TUYF Family Trust, a discretfionary
family frust of which the objects include the
family members of Ms. TAI Fung. Accordingly,
Ms. Tai, as a founder of The TUYF Family
Trust, was deemed fo be interested in such
convertible notes of the Company held by
Araucarea pursuant fo Part XV of the SFO.

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in respect of
positions held pursuant fo equity derivatives) underlying
shares of the Company

No such interest was reported to the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the
above paragraph under "Disclosure of Interests under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance - Directors and Chief
Executives”, had registered an inferest or a short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the above paragraph under
"Disclosure of Inferest under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”, at no time
during the year were rights fo acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 year
or age, or were any rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable to
the directors of the Company to acquire such rights in any other
body corporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s fotal issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors, initial management shareholders or their
respective associates of the Company has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business of
the Group.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 30 October 2009 fo Tuesday, 3 November 2009 (both
days inclusive), during which period no tfransfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
vofing at the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all the share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the branch share registrar
of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not lafter than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 29 October
2009.
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AUDITORS

There have been no change of auditors in the past three years.

A resolution for the reappointment of Cachet Certified Public
Accountants Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
HUANG Shaokang
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 September 2009
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 30 June 2009.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importfance of good corporate
governance practices to maintain shareholder value and investor
confidence.The Group is committed to maintaining statutory and
regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance with emphasis on fransparency, independence
and accountfability with a view fo safeguarding the inferests of
shareholders and enhancing corporate value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 15 fo the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code except for the code provision E.1.2 throughout the year
ended 30 June 2009. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the foregoing
deviation of code provision are summarised below.

A. THE BOARD
A.1 RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in its Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in the attainment of the objective of creating
value fo shareholders, and on behalf of the shareholders,
overseeing the Company’s financial performance. All
directors have carried out their duties in good faith and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, take
decisions objectively and acts in the inferests of the Company
and its shareholders at all fimes.
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The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All directors have full and fimely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the senior
management, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expenses, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are led by the Chief Executive Officer
and senior management of the Company. The Board has
delegated a schedule of responsibilities fo these officers,
which include the implementation of decisions of the Board,
the co-ordination and direction of day-fo-day operation
and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board,
formulating and monitoring the production and operatfing
plans and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the
control systems.

The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has also to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant fransactions enfered
info by the foregoing officers.
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A.2 BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive directors:

Mr. HUANG Shaokang, Chairman of the Board

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, Chief Executive Officer and
member of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. LIU Lin

Non-executive direcftor:
Mr.YIP Sam Lo

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LU Wei, member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. CHANG Chung Wai, member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

The list of all directors (by category) is set out under the
section headed "Corporate Information” in this annual report
and is also disclosed in all corporate communications issued
by the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules from time
fo time.The independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications of the Company.
The biographical details of the directors of the Company
are set out under the section headed "Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographies” in this annual report. None of
the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Board has at
all times met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
relating fo the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with af least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise. The Company has also adopted the
recommended best practice under the CG Code for having
at least one-third of its Board members being independent
non-executive directors.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable
business expertise, experiences and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Through
active participation in Boards meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of inferests and
serving on Board committees, all independent non-executive
directors make various contributions to the effective direction
of the Company.
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The Company has received a written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his
independence pursuant fo the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive directors independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

A.3 CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by different
individuals.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. HUANG Shaokang, who
provides leadership for the Board and ensures its effectiveness
in all aspects. With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a
fimely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising af
the Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, who is
in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations and focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.

A.4 APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive directors of the Company is
appointed for a specific terms of 2 years and is subject to
retirement by rotafion once every three years.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Articles of Association.
According fo the Articles of Association, all directors of the
Company are subject fo retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and any new director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy or as an additional to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders atf the
first general meeting after appointment. Accordingly, Mr.
HUANG Shaokang, Mr. YIP Sam Lo and Mr. LU Wei shalll retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board
recommended the re-appointment of these three refiring
directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company's circular, sent fogether with
this annual report, contains detailed information of the above
directors.

Thoughthe Company has not set up a nomination committee,
the Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
monitoring the appointfment and succession planning of
directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors. Moreover, the Company has adopted
“Directors Nomination Procedures” as writfen guidelines in
providing formal, considered and fransparent procedures
fo the Board for evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships. Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Board, through ifs
meeting held on 22 September 2008 (with the presence of Mr.
CHOW Siu Kwong, Mr.LU Wei, Mr.FONG Fuk Wai and Mr. CHANG
Chung Wai) has reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements for
the business of the Group; made recommendation of the
re-election of the retiring directors standing for re-election
at the 2008 annual general meeting; and assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive directors
of the Company.
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A.5 TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR

DIRECTORS

All directors of the Company receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as fo ensure understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and directors’ responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Directors of the Company are continually updated on legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development for
directors will be arranged as necessary.

A.6 BOARD MEETINGS
A6.1 Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Schedules for regular Board meetings are normally agreed
with directors in advance in order fo facilitate attendance.
In addition, notice of atf least 14 days is given of a regular
Board meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable nofice
is generally given.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is usually sent fo all
directors together with the notice of meeting in order to give
them an opportunity to include any other matters in the
agenda for discussion in the meeting.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent fo all directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting to keep the directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Group
and fo enable them fo make informed decisions. The Board
and each director also have separate and independent
access fo the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, the Company Secretary and
other relevant senior management of the Company normally
attend regular Board meetings and, where necessary, other
Board and committee meetings fo advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects
of the Group.
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The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all
Board and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated fo directors for comments within a reasonable
fime affer each meeting and the final version is open for
directors’ inspection.

According fo current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder or a director, will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.The Articles
of Association contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not fo be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving fransactions in which such directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

A6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board has met regularly during the year ended 30
June 2009 for reviewing and discussing the financial and
operating performance and development of the Group. The
attendance records of each director at these Board meetings
are set out below:

Attendance/Number of

Name of Director Board Meetings

Executive directors

Mr. HUANG Shaokang 2/8
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong 8/8
Mr. LIU Lin 2/8

Non-executive director
Mr.YIP Sam Lo 2/8

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. LU Wei 6/8
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai 7/8
Mr. CHANG Chung Wai 7/8

A.7 REQUIRED STANDARD OF DEALINGS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealings in the Company'’s securities (the
"Own Code") on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of Dealings”). Specific
enquiry has been made of the Company's directors and
all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Required Standard of
Dealings and the Own Code throughout the year ended 30
June 2009.

ARAZARMERERMEEFEERL
ZEGERIGALEEE FALHERA
—BRERAFNERK - RAERBAARE
=EH NKERTER  REEEZRA
BT AR - HEEEERN -

KERBEEFSER  ERASRIERRRK
ESNSBRCERRS HﬁAE‘Q”FfﬁZ
Efgen thESSEEREE - AD
ZERAAIIRE A R xi%%ﬁ’\?ﬂtw&

HHEEMBEAREFHREERABGD LR
FERZEFLHERE  RRZFRRIK

FANEEAHBA -

Ab2ES HFE TR

RBE-_ZZAFAA=ZTHILFE E=F
SEHEAREE  BHETRAEEZTE

REBRANER BUEEHFESSS
EREFIMT

HEER/
EENS EZSSEETRY
HITEF
mOREE 2/8
ER S 8/8
WIS & 2/8
FPITEE
E=-@Egs 2/8
HIIFITEFE
BREREL 6/8
TEERE 7/8
SRIPEELE 7/8
REREER

ARFBERMREEFTETARATRRS
ZIRSRATERSTALD - ERTEREIE
R ETARANES ABIEEES.67TIRMREZR
FREAUN(NTZZZHRELR]) - BRE2BES
EHARBENRER  SEERR KEREE
TEENFRAZTEEEEFE-—FET
RPHZHMELEY B ATA -




EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

Corporate Governance Report 258 E

B.1

The Company has also established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Required Standard of
Dealings (the "Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees”) for securities transactions by employees who
are likely fo be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance
of the Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees
by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees have been established with defined written
ferms of reference, which are posted on the Company’s
website "www.epro.com.hk”and are available to shareholders
upon request. All the Board committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out in A.6.1
above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
fo discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able fo seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of four
members, being three independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman),
Mr. CHANG Chung Wai and Mr. LU Wei, and one executive
director of the Company, namely, Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i)
make recommendations on the establishment of procedures
for developing remuneration policy and structure of the
executive directors and the senior management, such policy
shall ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration; (i) make
recommendations on the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management; (iii) review
and approve the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management by reference fo the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions; and (iv) review and approve
the compensation arrangements for the executive directors
and the senior management.
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The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administrafion of the human resources data and
making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration.The Remuneration Committee consults with
the Chairman of the Board/Chief Executive Officer of the
Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Remuneration
Committee has met once with the presence of all the
commiffee members. The members in that meeting had
reviewed and recommended the remuneratfion package of
the directors and senior management of the Company.

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2009 are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements contained in this annual report.

B.2 AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members,
namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman), Mr. CHANG Chung
Wai and Mr. LU Wei, all of whom are independent non-
executive directors of the Company. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee also possesses the appropriate accounting
and financial management expertise as required under
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.

The duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance
officer or external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii)
review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
fo the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation fo the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors; and (iii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’'s financial reporting system, infernal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.
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During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Audit Committee has
held 4 meetings and has reviewed the financial statements,
results announcements and reports for the year ended 30
June 2008, for the 3 months ended 30 September 2008, for
the 6 months ended 31 December 2008 and for the 9 months
ended 31 March 2009; the financial reporting and compliance
procedures; the report from the senior management on
the Group’s internal control and risk management; and
considered the re-appointment of external auditors. The
external auditors were invited to attend one of the meetings
without the presence of executive directors fo discuss with
the Audit Commiftee on issues arising from the audit and
financial reporting matters.

The attendance records of each Audit Committee members
at the Audit Committee meetings are set out below:-

Attendance/

Name of Member Number of Meetings

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. CHANG Chung Wai 4/4
Mr. LU Wei 3/4

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2009.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, price sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and other
regulafory requirements. The management has provided
such explanation and information fo the Board as necessary
fo enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial information and position of the Group put forward
to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relafing to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability fo continue as a going concern. There is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the infernal control
system of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is also responsible for maintaining an adequate
and effective internal control system to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Company. During
the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the infernal control system of the Group.
Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance
and risk management aspects of the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS'
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company on
their reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in this annual
report.

The fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors in
respect of audit and non-audit services for the year ended
30 June 2009 are as follows:
Nature of services Amount (HK$)

Audit services
Non-audit services

420,000
44,000

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board believes that a fransparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and
investors fo make the best investment decision and fo have
better understanding on the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential
and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.epro.com.hk” as
a communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where the Group's business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.
Shareholders and investors may also write directly fo the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 1501, 15th Floor, Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-248
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to “enquiry@
epro.com.hk” for any inquiries. Inquiries are dealf with in an
informative and timely manner.
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Shareholders’meetings provide an opportunity for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Board members and
appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings
fo answer any questions raised by shareholders.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
chairman of a listed issuer should attend the issuer’'s annual
general meeting. Mr. HUANG Shaokang, the Chairman of the
Board, was unable to affend the Company’s 2008 Annual
General Meeting due fo an important business engagement.
However, he had arranged for Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company who is well versed in all the
business activities and operations of the Group, to aftend on
his behalf and to chair the meeting and communicate with
the shareholders of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. Besides, the rights of shareholders for proposing
resolutions are contfained in the Articles of Association.

Upon implementation of amendments in the GEM Listing
Rules with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed
at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll. The poll voting
results will be posted on the GEM website “www.hkgem.com”
and the Company’s website "www.epro.com.hk” after the
relevant shareholders” meetings.
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CACkEL
Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited

RGBEHDTHAA IR A

13F Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EBEFELTITE1285F Y RE13FE

To the shareholders of EPRO Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of EPRO Limited
set out on pages 41 to 127, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 30 June 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing.
implementing and maintaining infernal
the preparation and the true and fair presentatfion of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
fo fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

control relevant tfo

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
tfowards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the audifors” judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order fo design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overalll
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a frue and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
June 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited
Certified Public Accountfants

Chan Chi Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02671

Hong Kong
24 September 2009
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profif

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution costs

Technical expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of
associates

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Tax

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders
of the Company
Minority inferests

DIVIDENDS

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY

- Basic

- Diluted
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Notes
FfaE

4,5

t REERRK

Year ended 30 June 2009 BZ=—ZZNFERA

A=+HLEFE
2009 2008

It 3 51K —EE)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
66,984 50,825
(31.014) (23.816)
35,970 27,009
1,819 10,193
(689) (983)
(20,394) (16,781)
(20.173) (23.641)
10> (213)
(3.469) @,416)

- 5,907

(3.469) 1,491
(3.419) 1,713
(50) (222)

(3.469) 1,491
NilfE Nil

(1.02) centsj#fll

0.51 centsi#l

N/ATER

N/ATEF
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2009 2008
—EEAE —EE)N\F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B FiExT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KR 13 2,544 2,683
Interests in associates AN ok 15 - -
Available-for-sales investments Al ERE 16 - -
Total non-current assets IERBNEERTE 2,544 2,683
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories TE 17 5 25
Available-for-sales investments Al ERE 16 - -
Trade receivables FEWE SRR 18 15,203 4,455
Prepayments, deposits and BNFIE - BE Rk
other receivables H b fEUYGRIE 19 4,026 6,225
Equity investments at fair BRATESAER
value through profit or loss ZEEIRE 20 810 -
Pledged deposits EEAFR 21 6,600 10,249
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReFEER 21 11,462 18,792
Total current assets MENE ELBTR 38,106 39,746
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FERTE SRR 22 5,181 3,303
Other payables and accruals H b e IE R ERT A S 11,130 11,449
Deferred revenue REWES 568 570
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 16,879 15,322
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 21,227 24,424
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERAEBEE
LIABILITIES 23,771 27,107
Net assets EERE 23,771 27,107
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to RATERSTE AELER
equity holders
of the Company
Issued capitall BTN 24 33,617 33,617
Reserves & (9.846) (6,560)
23,771 27,057
Minority interests DYAR R - 50
Total equity WemmE 23,771 27,107
HUANG Shaokang LIU Lin
BEOE AR
Director Director

EZ EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #GREEmE B8Rk

Year ended 30 June 2009 HZE=—ZFAEAA=1THILLFE

A1 July 2007

Exchange realignment

Total income and expense
for the year recognised
directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total income and expenses
for the year

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Equity-seftled share opfion
arangements

Capital injection from minority

shareholders of subsidiary

Tofal income and expenses
for the year

At 30 June 2008

At 1 July 2008

Exchange realignment

Total income and expense
for the year recognised
directly in equity

Loss for the year

Tofal income and expenses
for the year

At 30 June 2009

REZRLECA—H
NERE

ERREETREZ
AR 4R

RERR

AEZRAR MR

£

BOEI

DB 18
BIEZH

MBARLH
BRIE

REZWARFEH

RZZZNFRA=TH

R=2EN\FtA-H

ERE

EEMERT R
WARFx 8%

TEER

REZWARFEE

R=BENERA=TA

Notes

HtaE

24,26(0)
24, 2(b)

25

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FAAREREAER
Exchange

Issued Share Option  fluctuation Accumulated Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BRTRE ROEEER BRERE NETDRE 2RER At LERRER REAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET THET TET T FET THET T
24,012 7317 - (1.104) (19.183) 11,072 - 11,072
- - - (2.947) - (2.947) 14 (2,933)
- - - (2.947) - (2.947) 14 (2.933)

- - - - 1,713 1713 (222) 1491
- - - (2.947) 1713 (1,234) (208) (1.442)

9,605 5,762 - - - 15,367 - 15,367
- (869) - - - (869) - (869)

- - 2721 - - 2721 - 2721

- - - - - - 258 258

9,605 4,893 2721 (2,947) 1,713 15,985 50 16,035
33,617 12,210 2721 (4,051) (17.440) 27,057 50 27,107
33,617 12,210 2,721 (4,081) (17.440) 27,057 50 27,107
- - - 133 - 133 - 133

- - - 133 - 133 - 133
- - - - (3.419) (3.419) (50) (3,469)
- - - 133 (3.419) (3.286) (50) (3.336)
33,617 12,210 2721 (3.918) (20,859) 237 - 23,
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #4&8RE&REHRE
Year ended 30 June 2009 HE—EENFEAA=1THILEE

2009 2008
—EETNEF —ETNF
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
B FHT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBERERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BREIRIEE (3.469) 4.416)
Adjustments for: FEEE
Finance costs BB B 9 2 213
Interest income A B 5 (118) 741)
Dividend income from equity BRATEFAERZ
investments at fair value DRURE 2R
through profit or loss A% S 5,6 n -
Fair value gains on BAHERAERZ
equity investments at fair value TREE AT ERE
through profit or loss 5 6 (54) -
Depreciation e 6 964 665
Impairment of available-for-sales A ERERE
investments 6 - 158
Equity-settled share option LARR#E S~ ) el 52
expenses 6 - 2,721
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEK
plant and equipment B 5t 6 60 13
Write-off of property, plant and WEH I - R R Rt
equipment 6 40 -
Reversal of impairment of B EIEKE SRR
trade receivables VERIE] 56 (571) (1.454)
Write-off of other payables TS B R (ST KTE
and accruals NEtaE 6 - (2,575)
(3.167) (5.416)
Decrease in inventories FERD 20 183
(Increase)/decrease in trade FENCE S8R (&)
receivables Ve (10,177) 11,139
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TBFKIE - & K& HAh
deposits and other receivables MR IER D, (5 0) 2,199 (3.183)
Increase in equity investment at fair  ZAFEFAER
value through profit or loss N (756) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade JENE ZER
payables #in, ORd) 1,878 (4,689)
Decrease in other EhfEIE R ERTBIE
payables and accruals b (319) (2,678)
Decreased in deferred revenue RIEWE R A 2) (92)
Cash used in operations REXRBRERE (10,324) (4,736)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REIEBNEH - =
Overseas taxes paid B8N 10 - -
Net cash outflow from EEBHR 2R

operating activities FE (10,324) (4,736)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &£&8HEREHE

Year ended 30 June 2009 HZE=—ZFAEAA=1THILLFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Dividend received

Decrease in pledged deposits

Net cash inflow from
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Repayment of other loans
Capital injection from minority

shareholders of subsidiary
Interest paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

REFHRERE

EUA S
BEYX BENREEB

HEWE BERREZRE

R S)
EEMRETORD

RERHHEIMA
R

MEEFHZRERE

TR PTIS IR
BIRMNER
{ER EL Al 2 fiEk
MBARIDEIR
ZENEE
ERFLE

BETH RS ORd)
MmN

Notes
FfaE

24, 26(0)
24, 26(b)

ReRELEEER (BD)

EnFEE
FHHREMREEFEIRA

SNE A B 2 2K 3R

FRAESRBASEEEAR

RERRESEEBBALRIN

He MiRTTEF

WiERr 2 [RAT2IHIR A
R={E A2 8B
TE B

2009 2008
—FENE —TE\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
18 741
(1.073) (1.978)
143 1
21 -
3,649 5,170
2,858 3,934
- 15,367
- (869)
- (1,169)
- 258
2 (213)
) 13,374
(7.468) 12,572
18,792 9,235
138 (3.015)
11,462 18,792
11,462 14,849
- 3943
11,462 18,792
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Balance Sheet EEAER

30 June 2009 =T hFEARA=TH

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and
ofher receivables

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
RETBR R ZIKRE

FEmEEEAARE

REBEE

JREUR PS8 X Rl R IA

BNRER  ZER
HoA & KRR

[RERHEED /Y

RekReFERE

BB AR

REEE

HRENFAREBE

mBE ERRE

BERER
=it

BEEFH

e

BEITRA
(i

HUANG Shaokang

BLE

Director

BEE

Notes
FosE

14

14

19
21
21

24
26

2009 2008
—BBAE —TENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Fits
39 2,721

39 2,721

19.990 14,553

75 68

3,198 7,004

782 3,657
24,045 25,282
313 408

313 408
23,732 24,874
23,771 27,595
23,771 27,595
33,617 33,617
(9.846) (6.022)
23,771 27,595

LIU Li
Mk

n

Director

EF
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R =Mzt

Year ended 30 June 2009 HZE=—ZFAEAA=1THILLFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EPRO Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15 March 2000
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the "GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) on 2 August 2000.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Room 1501, 15/F Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-248
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group's principal activities have not
changed and were involved in (i) provision of professional
information technology (*IT") contract services: (i) provision
of maintenance services; and (iii) re-selling of hardware
and software.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Inferpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (*"HKICPA"), and accounting
principles generally acceptfed in Hong Kong. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosure required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of Stock Exchange and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for equity investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Bassis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 30 June
2009. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
datfe of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and confinue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. All income, expenses and
unrealised gains and losses resulting from infercompany
fransactions and infercompany balances within the Group
and eliminated on consolidation in full.
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Notes to Financial Statements BF#& 3R 3= izt

Year ended 30 June 2009 BE—ZEZAEAA=THILEE

22 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED 2.2 #FHH|s] R&IEE] 7 & &8t

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B EER 2 /%E
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new inferpretations AREBRARFEFEZHBRRENEBES
and amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current R EER R RS 2 EE]

year's financial statements.

HKAS 39 and Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial ezt HEB SR
HKFRS 7 Instruments Recognition and FEIORREE E3HIEHMIA :
Amendments Measurement and HKFRS 7 B 7% o 2E A AR E IRES

Financial Instruments: Disclosures E75% (BFTA) B 5 5 A A
- Reclassification of Financial Assets B7RIeWMIA :
BE-MIBEEL
BRI ZIEF]
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements 5785 (BB 75 PR A RT RE Bt
EREZEE)
—REF125%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes B (BRI 75 B BHEEl
HEREZES)
—REF13%
HK(FRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a w5 (ERIS BB gLl
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum ERBEeg) E195 — A EEF
Funding Requirements —REE145% EERE  &E
and their Inferaction B ERRME
HBEBF

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Amendments fo HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 B (BB 5 HEE(BBRMBHRS
and HKAS 39 and HKAS 39 Embedded Derivatives LEREZE®) REZE®)-2E
Amendments —REFRK EOW R BB

BAE AR R FEI95R [ H#R AR

395 (EFTA) TETEIZER
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Notes to Financial Statements

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Amendments - Amendments
to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Reclassification of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 39 permit an entity fo reclassify a
non-derivative financial asset classified as held for tfrading,
ofher than a financial asset designated by an entity as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition,
out of the fair value through profit or loss category if the
financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing it in the near term if specified criteria are
met.

A debt instrument that would have met the definition of
loans and receivables (if it had not been required fo be
classified as held for trading at initial recognition) may be
classified out of the fair value through profit or loss category
or (if it had not been designated as available-for-sale)
may be classified out of the available-for-sale category to
the loans and receivables category if the entity has the
intention and ability to hold it for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

In rare circumstances, financial assets that are not eligible for
classification as loans and receivables may be transferred
from the held-for-trading category fo the available-for-sale
category or to the held to maturity category (in the case
of a debt instrument), if the financial asset is no longer
held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
ferm.

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its fair value on
the date of reclassification and the fair value of the financial
asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new
cost or amortised cost, as applicable. The amendments
to HKFRS 7 require extensive disclosures of any financial
asset reclassified in the situations described above. The
amendments are effective from 1 July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial
instruments, the amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements BFF& 3R =izt

Year ended 30 June 2009 BE=—ZEZAEAA=THILEE

2.2

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 applies to service concession operators and
explains how to account for obligation undertaken and
the rights received in service concession arrangements.
As the Group currentfly has no such arrangements,
the interpretation has had no effect on these financial
statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires customer loyalty award credits to
be accounted for as a separate component of the sales
fransaction in which they are granted. The consideration
received in the sales fransaction is allocated between the
loyalty award credits and the other components of the
sales. The amount allocated to the loyalty award credits is
determined by reference to their fair value and is deferred
until the awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise
extinguished. As the Group currently has no customer
loyalty award scheme, the interpretation is not applicable
to the Group and therefore is unlikely to have any financial
impact on the Group.

HK(FRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

HK(FRIC)-Int 14 addresses how fo assess the limit under
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund
or a reduction in fufure contribufions in relation to a
defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an
asset, including situations, when a minimum funding
requirement exists. As the Group has no defined benefit
scheme, the interpretation has had no effect on these
financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended 30 June 2009 #ZE=

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int9 and HKAS 39 Amendments - Amendments
to HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and HKAS 39 Embedded Derivatives

The HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Amendments infroduce new condition
under which the Group should perform subsequent
reassessment on whether embedded derivative should be
separated from host contract. In addition fo a change in
the terms of contract that significantly modified the cash
flows that otherwise would have been required under
the contract, the amendments require a subsequent
reassessment fo be performed when there is reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category, which shall be made on the basis of the
circumstances that existed on the lafer date of: (a) when
the entity first became a party to the contract; and a
change in the terms of the confract; and (b) a change in
the terms of contract that significantly modified the cash
flows that otherwise would have been required under the
contract. The amendments fo the inferpretation did not
have any financial impact on the Group.

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements !

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs '
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separated Financial
Statements ?
HKAS 32 & 1 Amendment to HKAS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Amendments Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation
HKAS 39 Amendments Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial

Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Ifems 2
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Notes to Financial Statements

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

Year ended 30 June 2009 BE—ZEZAEAA=THILEE

2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

BRI RE

2.3 EEMERRER BBD

B 7S 5 4

Bl & w

STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 27 Amendments

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Amendments fo HKFRS 1 First-fime Adoption
of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements - Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Firsttime Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards 2
Amendments fo HKFRS 2 Share-based

Payment - Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations !

Business Combinations ?

Amendments to HKFRS 7, improving
Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
Operating Segments !
Agreements for the Construction

of Real Estate

Hedges of a Nef Investment in
a Foreign Operation *

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners ?

Transfers of Assets from Customers *

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued

Improvements fo HKFRSs

** which sets out amendments

fo a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view fo removing
inconsistencies and clarify wording.
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Notes to Financial Statements

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUTNOTYETEFFECTIVE 2.3 BB E S K E R 2 FE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MR ELER 2 E B

STANDARDS (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 July
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008

Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on
or after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in October 2008, contain
amendments fo HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS
10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS
27, HKAS28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38,
HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41, Except for the amendment
to HKFRS 5 which is effective for the annual periods on
or affer 1 July 2009, other amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.

Improvements fo HKFRSs issued in May 2009, contain
amendments fo HKFRS 2, HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS
7, HKAS 17, HKAS 18, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16. These amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.
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EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

“EENFARAZTHLEFE

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, it has concluded that while the
adoption of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in
new or amended disclosures and the adoption of HKFRS 3
(Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and HKAS 23 (Revised) may
result in changes in accounting policies, these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely fo have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Change in segment identification

During the year, the Group changed its identification
of reportable business segments. The Group split its
previous single segment, namely, *Provision of professional
IT contract services” info three new business segments
namely, “Provision of professional IT contract services”,
"Provision of maintenance services” and ‘Re-selling of
hardware and software”. The main change relates to
the allocation of the activities pertaining to the previous
"Provision of professional IT contfract services” segment
info the respective “Provision of professional IT contract
services”’, "Provision of mainfenance services” and ‘Re-
selling of hardware and software”, sesgment fo the extent
fo which such activities are related. In the opinion of the
directors, the new basis of segment identification provides a
more appropriate presentation of the segment information.
Prior year segment information is restated for comparative
purposes.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies are under the Company controls, directly or
indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable.The Company'’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 FE@ S E »)

POLICIES (Continued)
Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which
the Group has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in
a position fo exercise significant influence.

The Group’s inferests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from fransactions between the Group and its associates
and eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transfered. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates, which was not
previously eliminated or recognised in the consolidated
reserves, is included as part of the Group’s interests in
associates. Adjustments are made fo bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
income statfement fo the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are
freated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit fo
which the asset belongs.
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“EENFARAZTHLEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 £Z&

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Confinued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the fime
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged fo the income statement in
the period in which it arises unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting dafe as fo
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset and certain financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
fo determine the recoverable amount of that assetf, but
not fo an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited fo the income statement in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:

(o) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
infermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (i) has
an inferest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

) the party is an associate;

©) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(C))

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d); or

©)

0) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e).

and

Property, plant and

depreciation

equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises ifs purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset fo its working condition and
location for its infended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
foits residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% to 50%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 18% to 33 /3%
Motor vehicles 25%
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the assetf is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged fo the income statement
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects fo develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the fechnical feasibility of completing the
infangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its infention to complete and its ability to use or sell the

asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,

the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
dose not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 FE@ S E»)

POLICIES (Continued)
Research and development costs (Continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
commencing from the date when the products are put info
commercial production.

Leases

Lease where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assefs remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party fo it and assesses whether an embedded derivative
is required fo be separated from the host contract when
the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
fo those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets affer initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate re-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assetfs
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits fo purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets the require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.5

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assetfs
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
frading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading or these financial
assets are recognised in the income statement. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement
does not include any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking info account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-fo-
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-fo-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is computed as
the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective inferests method of any difference between the
initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. This
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an infegral
part of the effective interest rafe, fransaction costs and
all other premiums and discounts. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the investments
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the

amortisation process.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale  financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that
are designated as available for sale or are not classified in
any of the other three categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value,
with gains or losses recognised as a separate component
of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
included in the income statement. Inferest and dividends
earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as "Other income and gains” in accordance
with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition” below.
Losses arising from the impairment of such investments are
recognised in the income statement as “Impairment losses
on available-forsale financial assets” and are transferred
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively fraded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
fo quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there is
no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
fechniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis; option pricing models;
and other valuation models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses af each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.
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2.5

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 FE@ S E»)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective inferest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence
(such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor and significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Assefts carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-forsale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. A provision for impairment is made for
available-for-sale equity investments when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.
The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgments. In addition, the Group evaluates other
factors, such as the share price volatility. Impairment losses
on equity instfruments classified as available for sale are
not reversed through the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation fo
pay them in full without material delay fo a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.5

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 FE@ S E »)

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither fransferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor fransferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
fo the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that fakes the form of a
guarantee over the tfransferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written
and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the
fransferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except
in the case of a written put option (including a cash-
setftled option or similar provision) on an asset measured
at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the
fransferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financialliabilities including trade payables, other payables
and accruals and deferred revenue are initially stated af
fair value less directly attributable fransaction costs and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
The related interest expense is recognised within “finance
costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 =&

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as aft fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
income statement.The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the income statement does not include any inferest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Where a confract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid confract may be designated as
a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis;
(ii) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains
an embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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“EENFARAZTHLEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 =&

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are
accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee
contractis recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial guarantee contfract, except when
such contract is recognised at fair value through profit or
loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
seftle the present obligation atf the balance sheet date, and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 "Revenue”.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward currency contracts fo hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
dafe on which a derivative contract is entered info and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
taken directly to the income statement.
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2.5

Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
(Continued)

The fair value of forward currency confracts is calculated by
reference tfo current forward exchange rates for contracts
with similar maturity profiles.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relatfionship fo
which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the
risk management objective and its strategy for undertaking
the hedge. The documentation includes identification of
the hedging instrument, the hedged item or fransaction,
the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will
assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetfing
the exposure fo changes in the hedged item’s fair value
or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges
are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an
ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting
are accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is
recognised in the income statement.The change in the fair
value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is
recorded as a part of the carrying amount of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the income statement.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised
cost, the adjustment to carrying value is amortised through

the income statement over the remaining ferm fo maturity.

Any adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged
financial instrument for which the effective interest method
is used is amortised to the income statement.

Amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists
and shall begin no later than when the hedged item ceases
fo be adjusted for changes in ifs fair value aftributable to
the risk being hedged. If the hedged item is derecognised,
the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in
the income statement.
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EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

“EENFARAZTHLEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
(Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated
as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change
in the fair value of the firm commitment affributable to
the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with
a corresponding gain or loss recognised in the income
statement. The changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument are also recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories represent trading merchandise and direct
costs incurred for IT contract work in progress and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less estimated
costs fo be incurred to completion and disposal.

Contract for services

Confract revenue on the rendering of services comprises
the agreed contfract amount and appropriate amounts
fromm variation orders, claims and incentive payments
arising from professional IT contract services. Confract
costs incurred comprise equipment and material costs,
subcontracting costs, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference fo the proportion of work completed to date to
the estimated tfotal work of the relevant contract. Where
the outcome of a contract cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised only fo the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible fo be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management.

Where confract costs incurred fo date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from confract
customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 =&

POLICIES (Continued)
Contract for services (Continued)

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
fo date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is freated as an amount due to contract
customers.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible info known amounts of cash,
are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group'’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
ferm deposits, which are noft restricted as fo use.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in
advance. Revenue is recognised and deferred revenue is
released to the income statement when the corresponding
services are rendered.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future oufflow of resources will be
required to seftle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected
fo be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 ¥ £

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

BRI RE

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
fax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if
it relates fo items that are recognised in the same or a
different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected fo be
recovered from or paid fo the faxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
tfemporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the fax bases of assefs and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

- where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, af the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of faxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
tfemporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
femporary differences, carryforward of unused fax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except;

= where the deferred tax asset relating fo the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
fransaction that is not a business combination and,
at the fime of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
fo the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced fo the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet dafe and
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted af the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tox liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate fo the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenueisrecognised whenitis probable thatthe economic
benefits will flow fo the Group and when the revenue can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the rendering of professional IT confract
services, on the percentage of completion basis,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
"Contract for services” above;
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Notes to Financial Statements B #%3R 3R Mis:

Year ended 30 June 2009 BE—ZEZAEAA=THILEE

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Confinued)

) provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the maintenance period;

©) from re-selling of hardware and software, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement
fo the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(@) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates fo an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the periods necessary tfo
match the grant on a systematic basis fo the costs that
it is infended to compensate. Where the grant relafes to
an asset, the fair value is credited fo a deferred income
account and is released to the income statement over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released fo the income statement by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee enfitlements o annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up o the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements fo sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service fo the Group in order to
be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance in the event of the termination
of their employment. The Group is liable fo make such
a fermination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future
long service payments expected to be made.The provision
is based on the best estimate of the probable future
payments which have been earned by the employees from
their service fo the Group to the balance sheet date.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits schemes (the *MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible fo
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become

payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when confributed info the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required fo participate in a
cenfral pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to confribute
a cerfain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.5

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 FE@ Sl E»)

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute fo the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
fransactions”).

The cost of equity-setftled fransactions with employees is
measured by reference fo the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a “Binomial Model”, further details
of which are given in note 25 to the financial statements.
In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken
of any performance conditions, other than conditions
linked to the price of the shares of the Company (*market
conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulffilled, ending on the dafe on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
seftled tfransactions at each balance sheet datfe until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 =&

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment fransactions (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification, which increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial o the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is freated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the dafe that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of oufstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS
2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 26 July 2000
that had not vested on 1 July 2005 and fo those granted
on or affer 1 July 2005.
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2.5

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

“EENFARAZTHLEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 2.5 =&

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functfional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency fransactions are
initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
datfe when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As af
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entifies are translated into the presentatfion currency of the
Company af the exchange rates ruling af the balance
sheet dafte and, their income statements are translated
info Hong Kong dollars atf the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
included in a separate component of the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating
fo that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.

AND ESTIMATES
Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgment,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Impairment of frade receivables

The policy for the impairment of frade receivables of the
Groupisbased onthe evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required.

Impairment for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis
at each balance sheet date, and makes impairment for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for sales.The management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventfory review on a product-
byproduct basis at each balance sheet date and makes
allowance for obsolefe and slow moving items.

Estimated fair value of financial assets

The estimation of fair value of financial assets required the
Group fo estimate the future market value expected fo
be received from the disposal of the financial assets and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are contained in nofe 23 to the financial
statements.
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EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has
fo consider various factors, such as expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset.The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is
made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed af each financial year end date based
on changes in circumstances.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (i) on a secondary segment
reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group's business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of the other business segments. As detailed in note
2.4 to the financial statements, the Group adopted a new
segment reporting basis and split its business info three
new business segments during the year. Summary details
of the business segments are as follows:

(a) provision of professional IT confract services;

(b) provision of maintenance services; and

©) re-selling of hardware and software.

In defermining the Group’'s geographical segments,
revenues are atfributed fo the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the

segments based on the location of the assets.

There are no sales or other transactions among business
or geographical segments.
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Primary segment reporting - business segments

Year ended 30 June 2009

Segment revenue:

Sales fo external cusfomers
Infersegment sales

Segment results

Other income and gains
Unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Loss before fax
Tox

Loss for the year
30 June 2009

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Interests in associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Depreciation
and unallocated amounts

Capital expenditure and
unallocated amounts

Reversal of impairment of
frade receivables

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of available-for-sales

investments

Equity-sefted share option expenses

AEBA
SRR P ZHER
REAMZ HER

PHEE

EMMA RNz
ROEFRX
RERA
BHABE
i

REER
“ERAEARZTA

EERRE
NEAE
N YNTIPA $
RARAE

BEE

RfABER
%
REAELE
X%
RRAELE
AEENESEN

RIfE
HEDNE  BER
B
HENE - BER
BEA
AR ERERE

SAB B MR

FESMER XKD

HE-FEAFAAZ+ALFE
Group
rEE
Provision of
professional  Provision of  Re-selling of
IT contract maintenance hardware
services services and software Others Consolidated
RitEREM RtEE BHREH
NEEHRS RERS BE Hity &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET TET
52,928 7,039 7,017 - 66,984
52,928 7,039 7,017 - 66,984
1,628 1,457 358 - 3,443
1,819
(8.729)
©))
(3.469)
(3.469)
15,330 790 2,950 - 19,070
21,580
40,650
12,833 2,018 549 - 15,400
1,479
16,879
Provision of
professional  Provision of  Re-selling of
IT contract maintenance hardware
services services and software  Unallocated Consolidated
R#EZEN RIEEE  BHREH RAE
NEA N RS RERYK BE EH &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TER TER TER
- - - 964 964
- - - 1,073 1,073
- - - 571 571
- - - 40 40
- - - 60 60
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.
Primary segment reporting - business segments

(Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2008

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers
Inter-segment sales

Segment results

Other income and gains
Unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Loss before fax
Tox

Profit for the year
30 June 2008

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Inferests in associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Depreciation
and unallocated amounts

Capital expenditure and
unallocated amounts

Reversal of impairment of
frade receivables

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of available-for-sales

investments

Equity-sefted share opfion expenses
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AR R M RE

Ry
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HE—FTENFNA=THILFE
Group
AEE
Provision of
professional  Provision of  Re-selling of
[T confract  maintenance hardware
services services  and software Others  Consolidated
RfEZAR REAEE  BEREE
RERA 0 RS RERB BE Hity e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT TAT TAT TAT
44,141 4,831 1,853 - 50,825
44,141 4,831 1,853 - 50,825
(2.408) 422 96 - (1,890)
10,193
(12,506)
(213)
(4.416)
5,907
1,491
9,594 592 366 - 10,552
31,877
42,429
12,026 1,469 469 - 13,964
1,358
15,322
Provision of
professional  Provision of  Re-selling of
[T confract  maintenance hardware
services services and software  Unallocated  Consolidated
RfEZEH RERE  BEREH KR
REA Ok RERB BE | &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AT TAT TAT TAT
- - - 665 665
- - - 1,978 1,978
- - - 1,454 1,454
- - - 13 13
- - - 158 158
- - - 2,721 2,721
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4.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Confinued) 4. DEEF )
Geographical segments ih & 2 3P
The following tfable presents revenue, cerfain asset TREJNAREEZWESFH 2WA - HF
and capital expenditure information for the Group’s BERBARIT ZER -
geographical segments.
Group
&
People’s Republic
of China (*PRC")
Hong Kong except Hong Kong Singapore Others Consolidated
HEARLAR ([hE])
B Mﬁ% Eil At EC)

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE  CET/\E CEEAE CEDNE CEEAFE CETN\F ZEEAfF CTE\E CEEAE TN
HK$'000 ~ HKS000  HK§'000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000 ~ HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000

T ThL TR Tin TR TER Tin ThL TR Th

Segment revenue:  HEMA :
Sales to extemal ~ KESNEF
cusfomers LHER 22,326 21,374 40,942 24976 3716 3,551 - 924 66,984 50,825

Segment assefs  AHAE 14,822 22,034 23,098 17,91 2414 2,461 316 343 40,650 42429
Capital expendifure EAFX 52 10 956 1932 65 36 - = 1,073 1978
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of professional IT contract services
and maintenance services rendered and the net invoiced
value arising from re-selling of hardware and software.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and
gains is as follows:

Revenue: WA -
Provision of professionall REFEENER
IT contract services & KIBRTS
Provision of maintenance RIELEERE RS
services
Re-selling of hardware B REeEE

and software

Other income and gains: HA A Rz
Inferest income FEUA
Dividend income from equity BEATEFABZEZ
investments at fair value through SREE ZTERARE
profit or loss
Reversal of impairment Bl EUE Z R
of trade receivables DERIE]
Write-off of other payables il S5 EL Ath FE AT 5K IE
and accruals RIEGTAE
Fair value gains on BAFER ABR
equity investments at fair value Z ERIRE
through profit or loss N ERE
Exchange gains, net SNEU A FEE
Bad debts recovery AR E]
Government grants received B3 BT A B
Others HAh
Total revenue, other income A~ EA

and gains Relas

5.

WA~ B UA R W
TINGLET T PEF L SETTIE S
MBS RIS R RS2 B RF
R RS Y R -

REEZ WA - HARA Rz 5 7 a0
T

Group
REE
2009 2008
ZEENF ZTEN\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
52,928 44,141
7.039 4,831
7,017 1,853
66,984 50,825
118 741
21 -
571 1,454
- 2,575
54 -
403 3,903
- 300
491 1,040
161 180
1,819 10,193
68,803 61,018
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LOSS BEFORE TAX

6. KRELAIEE

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at affer charging/ NEE 2 BRFEATER IR, (GEA)T
(crediting): | BIREETE
Group
AEH
2009 2008
ZEENF ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Cost of sales BEmiHERA
Provision of professionall REHEEEAR
IT contract services & KIBRTES 21,014 18,403
Provision of maintenance RIEESRE R
services 3,354 3,658
Re-selling of hardware B REeEE
and software 6,646 1,755
31,014 23,816
Depreciation e 964 665
Minimum lease payments under  RIELH MIEF 2
operating leases in respect of BT 2 fRIE
land and buildings FAAFRIE 2,889 2,799
Write-off of property, plant and BEEME - BE&
equipment Wtk 2 [E51E 40 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment Wt 2 [E51E 60 13
Impairment of availableforsales Al &R ERIE
investments - 158
Audifors’ remuneration ZERET N 420 500
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA (BIEME7
remuneration in note 7): itz EE=M<) :
Wages and salaries TENRF® 8,504 8,912
Net pension scheme RIKGHFOFRE
confributions* 744 915
Equity-settled share option ARG #E S A BRI 2
expenses - 2,721
9,248 12,548
Research and development costs  #15E K f 2 A A
Current year expenditure AEFEREZ - 321
Less: Government grants received & © B2 R AT BN (491) (1,040)
(491) (719)
Bad debts recovery ERWKE - (300)
Interest income MEHA (118) 741)
Exchange gains, net HNEWE - JFHE (403) (3.903)
Reversal of impairment of BBl EYCE 5 8RR
trade receivables A (571) (1,454)
Write-off of other payables and EH E A FE T RIE
accruals LIEGTRE - (2,575)
Dividend income from equity BATEFABRZ
investments at fair value SRIRE 2 THRAME
through profit or loss 2n =
Fair value gains on BRATEAABRZ 2R
equity investments at fair TE RN FEW S
value through profit or loss (54) -
* At 30 June 2009, the Group did not have forfeited & RIZZETZNFANA=1TH  AEEWR
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the BEBBEBRAKRESHEZHRI(ZZEEN

pension scheme in future years (2008: Nil).

F )



DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Employee share option benefits
Pension scheme contributions

(a) Executive directors

2009

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LIU Lin

2008

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LU Lin

ZTTN\F
Ak
Mg

Notes to Financial Statements Bt #%3 3R Mis:

Year ended 30 June 2009 BE—ZEZNEAA=THILEE

7. EEMe
BIRB XA ERZFSF EMRAREER
AMEDBIZE161 1678 T 1 58 2 78 F /5 % = B
T :
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EZThE T NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
He 114 95
Hibif< :
EXREE « HMER R
BT &= 2,742 2,535
& B BB IRERT - 1,698
RIREETEIfER 12 12
2,754 4,245
2,868 4,340
(o) BITES
Group
r5E
Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind benefits contributions remuneration
e
HtREE EEE Bike
Be REWFE RERR STEIf ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THEL THEL TEL
- 630 - - 630
- 1,365 - 12 1,377
- 747 - - 747
- 2,742 - 12 2,754
_ 600 - - 600
- 1,300 1,698 12 3,010
- 635 - - 635
- 2,535 1,698 12 4,245
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7. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Non-executive director

Mr.YIP Sam Lo E=FLE

(c) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

Mr. LU Wei BERE
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai FRESE
Mr. CHANG Chung Wai SR{PETSEAE

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the vyear
(2008: Nil).

No further emoluments were paid by the Group to the
executive and non-executive directors either as an
inducement upon joining or fo join the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Details of share options granted fo the directors are set
out in note 25. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the year.

/.

E=0 e )
(b) FHITES

Group
&
2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHT
(c) BUFHTES
BUFATEFZ2AFEMS W
T
Group
AEH
2009 2008
—EEhEF T )N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
38 31
38 32
38 32
114 95

FRLEE(TEMCENBLIERTES

ZHE(ZFBNF : §) -

AEEMERALSATEERIERTES
XA ERE B & - SAYERE AR M
AR EERS Z RENSKAE AR BR (B -

ETEREREZFBHRRYBRENZT
25 BIEEENFARELMME -



Notfes to Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2009 BE—EENFERA=1THILEE

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
3 (2008: 3) directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining 2 (2008: 2) non-director, highest paid employees
are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e - HtEM &

benefit in kind W=
Pension scheme contributions BRIREBETEIHIK

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil o HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,0007% 7T

BRI RE

hE&EeHaE L

iﬁqﬁ%%%{ﬁ%”ﬂTﬁﬁﬁ%(:%%)\
CZR)EF REZHMEFHRENLEX

ﬁu£7 FRABTME(ZETN\F: BR)

FEERRTMEEZMEFRBOT

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EThEF —ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAET
1,318 1,366
66 81
1,384 1,447

MEeENFTIIBERAZEHIIEEZES
ZHBEHENTX :

Number of employees

REAH
2009 2008
—BENE —FENF
2 2
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FINANCE COSTS 9.

ARTFABEER ZRITER
BB FX

Interest expenses on bank loans
and overdrafts wholly repayable
within five years

Inferest expenses on other loans  ZERAFREHREE 2 EMEK

wholly repayable within five years — #l85sx
Total finance costs BB R AN RE
TAX 10.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2008: Nil).

Taxes on profits in respect of Group companies operating
elsewhere have been calculated atthe rates of tax prevailing
in the respective tax countries/jurisdictions in which they
operate based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Group: REF :
Current bi=)i=
- over provision in —AEFERLY
prior years: B
Overseas SN
Total tax credit for the year FAMIBRALLEE

BB A

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EEAF T NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
2 87
- 126
2 213

PiIB

AEBERAFREL EAERBELE EMER
AN - E IR B RS
(ZZFTN\EF 8| -

REENE AR ZEE 2R R Z 8B
B EREBAEMZEEEN  2ERE
Bl - BEERBEEER 2BITHERG

st
= o
A

Group
rEEH
2009 2008
—EENF —TE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
- (5,907)

- (5.907)




Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended 30 June 2009 #HZ=

10.

11.

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

EENFARAZTHLEFE

AR R M RE

TAX (Continued) 10. FIE#)
A reconciliafion of the tax expense applicable to loss before ARBRHRAIEERUAARR G RENE R A
tax using the statutory rates for the countries in which the Frsr it Bl 2R 2 A E B R 5t & 2 BT FA 2 B
Company and ifs subsidiaries are domiciled fo the fax FRNEBRMERAEE ZEHEREWNOT ¢
expenses at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the applicable rates for the year is as follows:
Group
AEH
2009 2008
“EERF “ET)N\F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR FHT

Loss before fax R ATEE (3.469) (4,416)
Tox calculated at Hong Kong REBHE

fox rafes SEMBE (572) 165 729) 165
Effect of different taxation rafe B R B &

in overseas (60) 1.7 301 6.8)
Income not subject to tax SHUMA (116) 33 (1,278) 28.9
Expenses not deductible for tax AAHIBZ 560 16.1) 674 (15.3)
Over provision in prior years iﬁ&ﬁgﬂﬁﬁéﬁ - - (5,907) 133.8
Tox effect of change in tax HEHR L

rafe on deferred tax W‘%?&% - - 22 (0.5)
Unrecognised deferred fax assefs — RERELCHBEAE 188 (5.4) 1,010 (22.8)
Tax credit at effective tax EEBRTIE0%

rate of 0% (2008: 133.8%) (ZZZN\&

:133.8%) atEZ
HEEE - - (5.907) 133.8

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITES 11. ARG HERBREREERF

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The Company’s net loss from ordinary activities attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company for the year includes
a loss of HK$3,824,000 (2008: HK$983,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 26(b)).

= 37 H-|

=P

XBH B8

RERAARARAZHBHRRPREEZBR

FEME B ¥ %75 2 B 185 5 /3,824,000
BIL(ZZTZ/\F : 983,000 L) (M 5E
26(b))
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The calculations of basic earnings per share are based
on:

(Loss)/profit aftributable o
ordinary equity holders
of the Company

(&B#E) /&F

Shares igh)

Weighted average number of R E GREARZF
ordinary shares in issue during ST
the year, as adjusted, used in NEZTE AR
the basic earnings per share hniETHE

calculation

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
used in the basic earnings per share calculation for the
year ended 30 June 2008 is determined by adjusting the
effect of the additional 96,048,000 new shares issued
pursuant to the placing agreement (note 24) completed
during the year ended 30 June 2008.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 30 June
2009 and 2008 have not been disclosed, as the share
options outstanding during these years had no dilution
effect on the basic earnings per share for these year.

12. RRrlEBRBREDRA A

FEih < FIREF

BREARBMNESBNEZFERNRREB
BB AREZEE(BE), BT -
AR5 A B 81T 8B R Z InfE T 19 8hEt

st
= o
A

BRERBMIZIATEESE

RAFE B ERBIREN

2009 2008
—EEhE —ZT)N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(3.419) 1,713
Numbers of shares
RHHAE
2009 2008
—EThF T )\F
336,168,000 335,380,721

ARFAESERERABINBE_ZTZENF
NAZTBLEFEEHETRME R BN
BFHY DHREIRBEEEHEE %
1796,048,0000 # A% ( M 5£24) % & i

E °

HRFANRATEEREEZFENS
i 27K 2 R I S S R 0 o I
BERBZE_ZTNAFR_ZTEN\FRA=
TRIESESREETRF
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - W= Kkt
Group
AEH
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures equipment Motor
improvements  and equipment and software vehicles Total
EUS ERRE
HEXHB RERRHE LG RE &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThRL TEL TEL TEx Thx
30 June 2009 b k3
AA=TH
At 1 July 2008: —ZENE
tA-H
Cost AR 1,459 2,391 8,470 120 12,440
Accumulated depreciation 25tihE
and impaimment J5¥ 1 (860) (1.731) (7.134) (32) (9.757)
Net carrying amount REFE 599 660 1,336 88 2,683
At 1 July 2008, net of T3\t A
accumulated depreciation —A - Bk
and impairment ZEHTERAE 599 660 1,336 88 2,683
Additions hE 192 21 860 - 1,073
Disposa i (108) (13) - (82) (203)
Write off i - o) @1) - (40)
Depreciation provided ERiTE
during the year B 1) (150) (594) © (964)
Exchange realignment EHER - - (5) - (5)
At 30 June 2009, net of Z2ZNERA
accumulated depreciation =t+A - 2k
and impairment ZHTERAE 469 509 1,566 - 2,544
At 30 June 2009: e -3
~NAZTA:
Cost XA(E 1,108 2,110 7,663 - 10,881
Accumulated depreciation 25thE
and impairment RRifE (639) (1,601) (6,097) - (8.337)

Net carrying amount REFE 469 509 1,566 - 2,544




(Continued)

30 June 2008

At 1 July 2007:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 July 2007 nef of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Disposal

Depreciation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 30 June 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 30 June 2008:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount
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BN\
AA=TH

8 3
+tA-8:
RAE
ZiE

KAE

BH#E

e

tA-H BHk
SARERAE

OffF i

7

#
AR
2%
L

“2RN\ERA
=18 Bk
TERRE

“EENE
RA=1E
A fE
ZiHE

KR

REFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % - BENIZRE®#)

Group
REH
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures equipment Motor
improvements  and equipment and software vehicles Totall
FRA - EHRE

HEEE RERRE Rart & At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TEL TAL TAL
922 1,860 7.237 107 10,126
(638) (1,633) (6,548) ®) (8,824)
284 221 689 102 1,302

284 227 689 102 1,302

468 529 981 - 1978
- ® ©) - (14)
(162) (103) (376) (24) (665)

9 15 48 10 82

599 660 1,336 88 2,683
1,459 2,391 8,470 120 12,440
(860) (1,731) (7,134) (32) (9.757)
599 660 1,336 88 2,683




EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Capital contribution in respect
of employee share-based

compensation (note 25)

Impairment

Investments in subsidiaries

Due from subsidiaries
Impairment of amounts due
from subsidiaries

Due from subsidiaries, net of
impairment

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

FEETmRLD » A
BT ETIRMOEE
ZEE (F45E25)

IRERE

KB AR ZIRE
JRE U Bf B8 X R 3R IR
JRE W2 Bt 88 /2 R 3R0R

B R

JRE A Bf 8 X R 3K IR
EMERIRE

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Notes to Financial Statements Bt #%3 3R Mis:

Year ended 30 June 2009 BE—ZEZNEAA=THILEE

RMTB AR 2 RE
Company
NG|
2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
45,459 45,459
2,721 2,721
48,180 48,180
(48,141) (45,459)
39 2,721
108,735 103,298
(88,745) (88,745)
19,990 14,553
MEBARGARAERER LEREETEE
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Notes to Financial Statements

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continvedy 14. RMIB AT Z15& (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEMNB AR ZFFBAT ¢
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued and of issued
incorporation/  fully paid share capital/registered
registration and capital/registered capital held
Name operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
BRTR HAARREE
BRRAE, A=Y oy
HEMARL MR oF it iR A< B
=L SR 2R ZH{E BEXFOL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE =
ePRO (BVI) Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Nil 100 - Investment holding
RERAHEE it REZK
EPRO Computer Systems PRC US$700,000 - 100 Provision of professional
(Beijing) Company Limited HEI A 700,000t IT contract services
(no’res a&b) REERE
ERARR)BERAR B a R
( H Hakb)
EPRO Systems (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$925,000 - 100 Investment holding
SEZF (RE) BRATF BB 925,000/ 7T and provision of
professional T
contract services
REZRRRHEE
BARERA QRS
EPRO Systems (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding
SEEG (BF) ARAR 0 100,0007%75 and provision of
professional T
confract services
RAER RRG
,\aW&é%@HEi‘%
EPRO Systems Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; = 100 Investment holding
HERGARRA BB Non-voting and provision of
deferred management services
HK$15,099,769 T“ﬁ?ﬁﬁ&
2B TERR e R
15,099,769 ¢

ERZRRTR
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14.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

Place of
incorporation
registration/and

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid share
capital/registered

Name operations share capita
BRTR
BEREK/
AL/ K TR
A% RExBomE ZHE
EPRO Systems (S) Pte. Limited Singapore $$400,000
(note b)(Mb) HE 400,000 17T
EPRO Technology Limifed Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
SERBERAT N 1,000,0007% 7T
Hefei EPRO Information Systems PRC RMBT1,250,000
Technology Co., Ltd REAH 1,250,000 A R
(notes b & c)
BESEEEZRBBRARDA
(HzEbke)
Shanghai EPRO Software PRC US$200,000
Company Limited (notes b & ¢) B A 200,000 7T
HESERHERAT
(Mizbke)
HZePROM &4t Japan ¥8,100,000
(note by (ffiztb) A& 8,100,000H
Notes:
(a) This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign owned

enterprise under the PRC law.

) Not audited by Cachet Certified Public Accountants

Limited.

©) This subsidiary is registered as a foreign investment

enterprise under the PRC law.

14.

R EB AR 2R E (&)

Di

Percentage
of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company Principal activities
HAA RS
ZEB#T
BA /R
ERADL TEER
rect Indirect
B Lk
- 90 Provision of professional
IT contract services
REZXE
B a R
- 100 Provision of professional
IT contract services
RUEZEEA
e B R
- 80 Provision of professional
IT contract services
REZXER
B a # R
- 90 Provision of professional
[T contract services
REUEZEEA
B a O R
- 100 Provision of professional
[T contract services
RUEZEEA
B e # R

fiaE

(@)

()

©)

ZEW B A R TR IR BOR R EE M A
FEARE

VHkmEHatMEERAERARE

% e

LB R RREDBEEEERRINER
Ao



15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

At the beginning of the year:
Unlisted shares, at cost
Share of net assets
Impairment

Net carrying amount at the
beginning of the year

Less: Transfer to available-
for-sales investments
(note 16)
Cost
Impairment

Net carrying amount at the
end of the year

At the end of the year:
Unlisted shares, at cost
Share of net assets
Impairment

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s associates extracted from their

RAEA] -
JE LAY - A
DIEEEFE
BB

RAEY 2 REFE
B ERFHHERE
(Kf=E16)

DN
IE

AR 2 BREDFE

RN
JE LAY » A
DMEEEFE
B

management accounts/financial statements:

Assets

Liabilities
Revenues

Profit for the year

BE
AR
Yoz
REZ RN

15.

\

A
N
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o = 5 3L
/NI s
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZET)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
12,103 12,103
(12,103) (12,103)
12,100 -
(12,100) -
3 12,103
(©)) (12,103)

2009
i
HK$°000
FRIL

TREMANEE 2 B2 QR 2B ERE
ERMEHEERA S MBRE

2008
—TENF
HKS$’000
THT

3,557

(7.957)

22,126
1,928
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15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 13,
Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:
Place of
incorporation/
Business registration
Name structure and operations
MR/ EMELE
A8 XBRE B3k ok
ePROgistics Limited (note (a)) Corporate Hong Kong
SEMRHMBERAR (MzE(a)) AR BE
eTradeGo Limited Corporate British Virgin Islands
AR RERUHE
2GoTrade Limited Corporate Hong Kong
SEMEERAT AF] BB
Note(a): No financial informatfion had been provided as

ePROgistics Limited had commenced a deregistration
process in year 2007.

The Group’s interests in the associates are indirectly held
through wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Group is entitled to
the same percentage of voting power and profit sharing
as denoted in the ownership percentage.

Percentage of
ownership
interest attributable
to the Group Principal activities
AEEGEE
REEZEDL TEEHR
2009 2008
“EERE —ZTN\F

30 30  Provision of logistic IT
contfract services

REMREN

B a # R

30 30 Investment holding
REZR

30 30 Provision of
application services

provider services

Rt B R AR

REEAERY

fizE(a) : ZEVDRMRERAREE=-ZZ
LR T RESHAR 7 AT AL S B TS A
R -

AEBERE =2 AR ZERIVEB2ENE
ARIMERE - AEEHEAER—AOILZ
RERNNEEER D LLARED AR
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Limited and 2GoTrade Limited (the ‘Investments”)
in the aggregatfe cost of HK$12,100,000 which were
classified as “Interests in associates” (note 15) in prior
years. During the year, the Investments have been re-
classified as "Available-for-sales investments” since the
Group has resolved fo dispose of the Investments in the
near future. The Investments have been fully impaired
in prior years. There were no material impact on this
re-classification fo the financial statements.

16.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALES INVESTMENTS 16. AIHEERE
Group
REE
2009 2008
—EThE ZTEN\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Classified as non-current asset PERERBEE
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETIRRS + HRAKA 317 317
Impairment BIE (317) 317)
Net carrying amount at the RANFR 2 FREFE
end of the year - -
Classified as current asset PEARBEE
Transfer from interests SR NG o 2 YN

in associates (HEE15K(a))

(notes 15 and (a)) - -
Unlisted shares, at cost E MR - A 12,100 -
Impairment VERIE] (12,100) -
Net carrying amount at the RANF LR 2 BREFE

end of the year - -

Nofe (a): Balance represented investments in  eTradeGo MizE(a): # # & [ elodeGo Limited

2GoTrade Limited [ %% & | RE
812,100,000 7T » Z IR E R EF
B BAIREE AR 2] (M
#£15) - BRASBEE HRERBEA
HEZRE - MR AEEBZIRER
[REtE ARz Sl HEE
BE |- ARNZREEETEEESR
HURE - LB D BH AN B RERIL
BERNTE -
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17. INVENTORIES 17. &
Group
AEE
2009 2008
—BENE —BENF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Contract work in progress ETHR 2 EHTE - -
Merchandise for sale FEHRE 5 25
5 25

At the balance sheet date, the inventories of the Group REEH  AEBEZRAIESEFAEIENT
carrying at net realisable value amounted to HK$5,000 K /5,000 L( = ZF = )\ F : 25,0007
(2008: HK$25,000). 7T e
=y =+
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. EIE 5 IR
Group
AEH
2009 2008
—EZThE T )\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FT
Trade receivables FEUE 5 AR 19,323 9,684
Due from contract customers EWEHER (Mita)
(notfe a) 470 -
Impairment BE (4.590) (5.229)
15,203 4,455
Note (a): iE(e)
Contract work in progress: EITHZEHTRE
Contract costs incurred plus B AIFTEE S LKA
recognised profits less MMEERRFRE
recognised losses to date TR EE 768 169
Less: Progress billings B IR (298) (169)
Gross amount due from EREHEF

contract customers KI5 470 =




18.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s frading ferms with its customers are mainly
on credif, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trading receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The Group’s terms on credit sales primarily range from 30
fo 90 days.

An aged analysis of the frade receivables as at the balance
sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Current RN ER

31 - 60 days 31 - 60k
61 - 90 days 61 - 90k
Over 90 days HRIEIOR

18.

JEWE Z RN (&)

B EP —RARLENRI » AEBEEH
BEPZESGRREERTRIERN - aRE
BE T e B o X EARAER
AEBZERRERTDEANESHEFE
B BYBEEREERRET 2B - &
WERHABTELE ©

REER REZAHFE2REKE SR
RZEWR DT -

Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —TTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
12,639 2,252
225 568
153 257
2,186 1,378
15,203 4,455
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18.

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
(or neither individually nor collectively) considered fo be
impaired is as follows:

REBH K ARRE
BRI —{E A
BH—=={EAR
#83B90 X

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 3 months past due

Over 90 days

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
fo a number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
frack record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

18.

JEWE Z RN (#)

W IR ARE (T B B R E B IRE) 2 &
WE SRR ZREDTAOT

Group

AEH
2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FERT T
12,947 2,454
225 568
222 257
1,809 1,176
15,203 4,455

R EI R R IRE 2 FE YRR A % 2 3 B AR T
HRICHEZDHEPER

BHERREZEREREZERNAEEER
REFLHZBIEPAM - REBERL
B ARNGEEEAXUESREE  MitHE
ERDERRAT2EKE - RARRES
RABAT U S ERELRERE - A%
B Ep U FERTAERNERREE M
HRIEE -
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. FENFRIE - REREME
RECEIVABLES W FKIE
Group Company
REE AATH
2009 2008 2009 2008
—gENE —TT)\F —BBAF —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°'000 HKS$'000
FHT FHT FTHT FHIT
Prepayments SEANEO2 363 182 75 50
Deposits and other receivables &4 K H fh fE ik 3,663 6,043 - 18
4,026 6,225 75 68
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. BEN EEERBHANERE - Ll
The financial assets included in the above balances relate BREzZeMEETHEGII EERLE 2
to receivables for which there was no recent history of FEW KRB RS -
default.
EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 20. BRFEFABRZIER

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, BEBEMZ
at market value in SRRE -
Hong Kong EmEHE

The above equity investments at 30 June 2009 were
classified as held for trading.

The fair values of the equity investments were determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on The
Stock Exchange.

K&

Group

rEEHE
2009 2008
—EBAE —TT\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
810 -
=+H

NEZSREBEEE_ZTNFAA
EDBRRFBEEEZKRE -
TRMBREZ XA FEDIREAREIAER
ZFTRERETE
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. BE& MR e«FEEB MDD

PLEDGED DEPOSITS WA TF
Group Company
AEH AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZEEhE —TENF —EEhE —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FHT FHET FHT
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTHER 11,462 14,849 782 42
Time deposits & HAITE K 6,600 14,192 3,198 10,619
18,062 29,041 3,980 10,661

Less: Pledged time deposits  Jl : AEEGLIRTT

for securing banking AMEmERZ

facilities THER (6,600) (10,249) (3.198) (7,004)
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS FBEER 11,462 18,792 782 3,657
At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances REER  AEBUARBAREMLZE S
of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted K SR AT 45 84 /25,993,000 (=TT )N
to HK$5,993,000 (2008: HK$6,105,000).The RMB is not freely % 16,105,000 L) - ARBTAI A
convertible into other currencies. However, under PRC's AR BEMINEG - A - RIEBEAMA
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration SNEERIRHIRAE  SERMEERMR
of Seftlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange o AKERERARBELETIVER S
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for ZHBRITIARB HiR R E N -

other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

The banking facilities of the Group are secured by: AEBEBZRITRET A TS EHERE
#

0) corporate guaranfees amounting to an aggregate 0) NN F) % F 458 518,300,000
of HK$18,300,000 executed by the Company (2008: JT(=ZZFZ )\ : 18,300,000/ 7T)
HK$18,300,000); and ZREER &

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits (i) TEBEHFRzE TEHR
amounting to HK$6,600,000 (2008: HK$10,249,000). 6,600,000 o( = T & )\ F :

10,249,000/ 7T) °
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TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of trade payables as at the balance
sheet date, based on payment due date, is as follows:

Current BPHR
31-60 days 31-60x
61-90 days 61-90K
Over 90 days HBiB0K
DEFERRED TAX

The principal components of the Group’s deferred fax
assets not recognised calculated at deferred fax rates in
Hong Kong, Singapore, the PRC and Japan of 16.5% (2008:
16.5%), 18% (2008: 18%), 15% and 25% (2008: 7.5%) and
30% (2008: 30%) respectively, on the cumulative temporary
differences at the balance sheet date, are as follows:

Tox losses HBEE
Accelerated depreciation IR E
allowances R

22.

23.

e E SRR

R B ZBRFNEE D RRMNREIHA
BRI DTN

Group

rEEH
2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
3,337 1,128
844 665
34 257
966 1,253
5,181 3,303

EIETIA

BREERZ RETEEER - RBFEE -
Mg - PERAARZELEN XD FA
16.5% (=TT )\F : 16.5%) * 18%(=F
TNF:18%) * 16%K25%( =TT NGF:
7.5%) 30% (ZZZ)\4F : 30%) * 7t &
AEEAERZEEHAEE L EEXND
W

Group

M
2009 2008
—EENF T N\F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FERT FAET
16,429 16,618
36 85

16,465 16,653
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23. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

24,

At the balance sheet date, the Group had tax losses arising
in Hong Kong, Singapore and Japan of approximately
HK$93,125,000 (2008: HK$94,287,000), that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.The Group's fax losses
arising in the PRC that are available for offsetting against
the following five years’ faxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose are approximately HK$5,424,000
(2008: HK$2,872,000). Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time.

As 30 June 2009, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2008: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable onthe unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's
subsidiaries or associates as the Group has no liability fo
additional tfax should such amounts be remitted.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: SEIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
as at 30 June 2008 and 2009

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR :

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZZEZ+FLH—H
as at 1 July 2007

Share placing on 4 July 2007

As at 30 June 2008 and
30 June 2009

REZFBNFAA=THR
—EBNFARA=TH

23.

24.

BREE. 1B < BB
R-ZEZF+ AMBARERN

IRAERLIE ()

REER  AEEREBE - FIMKEAR
E A B 1E 2 Bl #193,125,000/8 7T( =
T T )\ : 94,287,000/ 7t ) AT FA 1 4 84
AR BERZERBEN - ARERNPEE
AR AR EHEZE AR AR AFERTOE
M2 KB HE 4 735,424,000/ ( — 2 F
N\ : 2,872,000/ 7T) - BN ZZEHR
BEED —RERZMBAR - HILEHR
E T R SE B IR B EE A T RERR

RZBZANFRA=+H AEBETEE
e = B VEEPNCT e /NG e ) s P
T2 BIA M AE RN BINRIBZ BE
AREEF I BB KA B2 ARREDIEER
BEE(ZZEZNE &) -

LN
Number of Shares Nominal Value
REE HE

HK$'000
TR

RZZEN\FR_BZNFA=TH
Z FREECNEITZ BB

10,000,000,000 1,000,000
240,120,000 24,012
96,048,000 9,605
336,168,000 33,617
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Pursuant fo a placing agreement date 31 May 2007,
the Company placed a fofal of 96,048,000 new shares
of HKS$0.10 each of the Company to cerfain investors
at a placing price of HK$0.16 per share. The placing
was completed on 4 July 2007 and a gross proceed of
HK$15,367,680 was raised. The net proceed, affer expenses,
of approximately HK$14.4 million has been fully applied as
follows during the year ended 30 June 2008:

0)

)

(iii)

approximately HK$4.0 million for establishing a
research and development centre in the PRC;

approximately HK$1.0 million for setting up an office
in Japan; and

the remaining of approximately HK$9.4 million for
general working capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the
share options issued under the schemes are as follows:

(@

Pre-IPO share option plan

In recognising the contribution of certain directors
of the Company fo the growth of the Group and/or
the listing of the shares of the Company on the
GEM, the shareholders adopted a Pre-IPO share
option plan (the "Pre-IPO Plan”) on 24 July 2000.
Pursuant to the terms of the Pre-IPO Plan, 25,725,752
options fo subscribe for shares of the Company
were granted tfo three directors on 26 July 2000, ot
an exercise price of HK$0.70, with a vesting period
of six months from 2 August 2000. The options are
exercisable from 2 February 2001 until 23 July 2010.
However, each of the grantees is not allowed to
exercise in aggregate in exceed of 25% of all the
options granted within any six-month period. The
Pre-lPO Plan expired on 2 August 2000, but the
granted options remain exercisable.

& NE )

BREBEARANR-_ZEZLFRAA=+—H
RVl EWE ARRIETRN AR
96,048,000 & E{E0.1/8 7T - KA E
BEER0IGETEENBIIRES - BBE
EERN_ETLFLAMNBERREERM
S REEMNE5,367,680%T - R-ZTE
NERA=ZTBEZFER  AKRAXE
P15 SRIBFER A0 /314,400,0007 7T #E F 7
AT 2 75 2@ R AL

24.

()  #14.000,0003% 7 F R 7E B2 37

ﬁﬁ%qﬂ/b ;

(i) #71,000,0007% 7T A M7 H AR 5& 2
WER &

(i)  #3499,400,000/% 7T A fE — AR &

BE® -

BB AR T &
RATBREH R RS H ARG
WA

(Q) &R HEE R AR E
=T &
ARTASBEETERSASER
AR R S ARARKRGE A
FRIFER EMATEZ B/ - B =
EEEELA-THBEERER
AHABRAERETES(THE XA
FBRATEE ] - REBEE XA
BRI EIZ (658« ARARIERZ
EEEF LA+ ANHRA=MNE
B REARRA B R 2 B8 AR
25,725,752 + 17 1# {8 B0.70/%
T REHAR-_ZTEFNA_-H
BEANEA  BRER=ZZT—F
—A-HRBRE=_ZE—ZTF+LA=1
= BIERTBATT6E o AT - BAEA
TEREMNE A RTTES HEB
EEEREREDS D BRE - &
RARBRAGTER=ZZEZZTEN
AZBEH  HEREZERED
Al 1T o

25.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(a) Pre-IPO share option plan (Continued)

25. I EET S e
(@) BRDBBIRAERE

The following share options were outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Plan during the year:

Number of share options

BEREZA
Lapsed/
cancelled/
Name or As at exercised As at
category of 1 July during 30 June
participant 2008 the year 2009

RZBENE AEEXN/ RI-BBAE
SEEARRTEER tA-B BE/fi®  AB=tH

=&l &)

AT RAEEREERARBRA
SHBIR H i R 2 BB AR AR

Exercisable period  Data of grant of  Exercise price of
of share options# share options  share options##

BREZTES: RUBRERS BREZTEEs

HKS per share
BiRAT
Director
8%
Mr.YIP Sam Lo 1,986,367 - 1,986,367 2 February 2001 fo 23 July 2010 26 July 2000 5.57
EomgE i S “ETTE
“Z-THtA-T=AR tA=tiA
# The vesting period of the share options is from # BRE s, ZBHAEREN
the date of grant until the commencement HEAZITEHRAB AL -
of the exercise period.
HH The exercise price of the share options is #i# BEREZITEBEARTH®

subject to adjustment in the case of rights
or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

As a result of the fen-fo-one share consolidation
exercise and the one-fortwo rights issue on 30
December 2005, the exercise price of the aforesaid
outstanding share options was adjusted from
HK$0.557 to HKS$5.57 and the number of share
options outstanding adjusted from 19,863,670 fo
1,986,367 in accordance with the terms of the Pre-
IPO Plan.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
1,986,367 outstanding share options under the
Pre-lPO Plan, which represented approximately
0.59% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 1,986,367
additional new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each,
with aggregate proceeds before related issue
expenses of approximately HKS$11,064,000.

BB THRE - HARF
FEFEIE Lk
Fa -

ERNE+RAHE—BRKRNDE T
LR _TETAF+=_A=+H
LA E MR E R — ROE TR
bt RTEBREZITEED ®
0.557 B L AEE5.57F LW iR iE
BIR AR BERATRT 8] Z R38R 1T
FRERE 2 E B H19.863,670
FHEZE1,986,367 °

REER - ARBRBEHERXAFA
P& Rl EE 181,986,367 17 i AR 1T %
BRE  HERARRRE H#ET
Z B& 17 £90.59%  RIEA R R K
PRAZRHE - BT M ARTTEIBAR
S E 317,986,367 & R H
{B0.10/8 T 2 BINT EBAR D
PSR AR (MR RTRX
HI)#%711,064,000/8 7T °
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

Share option scheme

The Company, pursuant fo a resolution passed
on 12 February 2007, adopted the New Share
Option Scheme ("Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and
any enfity in which the Group holds any equity
inferest (the “Invested Entity”). Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include the directors
and employees of the Company, its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity, suppliers and customers
of the Group or any Invested Entity, any person
or entity that provides research, development or
fechnological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity, any adviser or consultant fo any area of
business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity, any joint venture
partner or business alliance that co-operates with
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
in any area of business operation or development
and any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Enfity. The Share Option Scheme should, unless
ofherwise terminated or amended, remain in force
for ten years from 12 February 2007.

25. I EET S e
(b) BR#ETE

AARRBER-_ZEZLF_A+=
B BB 2 R 3% SR B AN T BB A A AT &l
(TFERRHESTE]) - BEES Bk &R
BEAERELEMZEERSH
HLR R A S EEE % B
BEES MR AEE RAEEHE
ERBREzER((REER]E
EABEZANER - BRRETS
ZEBRSEEREARR - HI
BAREMREERE2EERIE
B AEBEREMREERB ZHE
BESEP - E{A R ALK Bk E 1%
BEERREEAE  BEXEMIE
ZATRER  AEEE@MKER
RISk E(IIE E E RS 2 Tk 5%
Rz AMESEZERRBAA - H
ANEBERKERRHEMEEE
BREBLEXNEEZTWNEES
B2 EEBHAEBHE  UEAK
EEERKE DRI EMEEEE
ZAERRFRS A AEEBEM@MKE A
Ak (IR E BB 1T 2 (E &
ZAEMFAA - B S B3k
BFUAKLIESIERT - R =TTt
FZRt+-—BRE—EEHR BT
o
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

25. B REETE®)
(b) BRRESE (2

The fotal number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 12 February
2007, being the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, (i.e. not exceeding 24,012,000
shares of the Company). The Company may seek
approval of the shareholders in a general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option
Scheme save that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options fo be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company under
the limit as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the
fotal number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit. Options previously
granted under the Share Optfion Scheme and any
other schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Opfion Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from fime
fo time. The number of shares issued and fo be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted fo each participant (including
both exercised and outfstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the date of grant. Each
grant of options fo any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by
independent non-executive directors.

MR ST B T IR T I i 2 I
NEBETSBEHARANR-_ZT+
FoAT-ABREFERABE
TR 210% (BN BB AR A
24,012,0008%R% 7 )  Z< A & Al g
B ATIR IR A A AR 8172 1 0% R AR
BRERARE EZRAERAE - HERTT
AR RE A T &) e A R AHETE
BB SR T 2 2 B0
i R IR AR S IR B A T 3T 2 D
BB NS B E R A B HRE B
HEBTRMOLEZ10% - AR
5 BB AR AT B R AR R B EA A A 5+
IREZBRE(BEZERART
- BEftts - ERBSIBRE LR
HEIRERMEM B ITEZER
M ERENS NEAERE
A o

AR B B v aT B R AR A AR E A
B EIPTA B R B RETE
ZBREETERETZRRRN
A TEBEEARARTKEET
B 17 48 8L 2 30% ° PO E fa]121E A
HREATRTFTEE2EEBRE
(BRETERFEARITEBELRE) 2
B BT T HITROBE TEHE
HARE G HBERABE HTR
D21%° AEMES - BFENT
ERETERREHBREREST
FERITERIAE o
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates would resultinthe shares of the Company
issued and fo be issued upon exercise of options
already and to be granted in excess 0.1% of the
Company's share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the Company’s shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options shall be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS$1 in fotal by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, save that such period shall not be
more than fen years from the date of the offer of
the share options subject fo the provisions for early
fermination set out in the Share Optfion Scheme.
There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before the exercise of the subscription
right attaching thereto except otherwise imposed
by the board of directors. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’'s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the datfe of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

25. BB EETE %)

(b) BRRESE (2
A EZR KK AR BB IERTT
BENRESAZIBHEALIREE
fiE @SB ERNBERZBER
EETEmMREITRBGEITZAR A
f% BB A A al A 20.1%8 &
{E#8355,000,000/%& T * AIZBE &
SRR B IRRBAE -

Ry s 2aAmAngs R Bg
28R LHARABNE
HIBTZ2HBERE - IRTER
HZOTERATTHESEE  #XR
REBRER BB BIRAIAR L2
fFX - BREABEAAEEZRARTE
R BEE +F - [RIEXHES
SELAE - DAL ERITRER
T P B 7 - SR BB R I A B B BB AR
B2 &EHR - TEETIRART
EFEE BAR@ERRT=%F2
BeE: (DARAROARELEE
B(LAREXR)REBR SRR
BRABRZEHE - (()ARA R
MREERLEERNABELEAR
Bt 32 P g H SR B R PR 2 P19 W
B R(i)ARBERA ZHE °
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 25. BRETEl )
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) BREE(E)
The following share options were outstanding under AR BARFEEREBIRET SR E
the Share Option Scheme during the year: i ARETTE 2 BE AR A
Number of share options
EREHA
Granted/
lapsed/
cancelled/
Name or exercised Exercisable Date of Exercise price
category of As at 1 July during As at period of grant of of share
participant 2008 the year 30 June 2009 share options#  share options optionst##
KEE R=2ENE
SEEERR RZ2ENE B/ %%/ AA=TH & TRE
R tA-H UM /1 WARITREE BRE2TED BREAS 2T EEH
HKS per share
kT
Director
Bz
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong 2,880,000 - 2,880,000 9 July 2007 o 16 July 2007 043
8 July 2017
JE}S it T 8 3
tAnRZE +A+7R
TtF
tANR
Employees 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 9 July 2007 fo 16 July 2007 0.43
8 July 2012
BT S g3 “TTE
tAnAZE tA+RE
—2-F
+ANR
Employees 320,000 - 320,000 9 July 2007 to 19 July 2007 043
8 July 2010
BT e S e 3
tANAZE tA+NE
“Z-ZF
TANR
Employees 400,000 - 400,000 9 July 2007 to 19 July 2007 043
8 July 2012
BT “ZTLE “TTtE
tANAZE tAthA
“E--F
+ANR
5,040,000 - 5,040,000
# The vesting period of the share options is from # ERE s mBHAEAEN
the date of grant until the commencement HEAZITEHARB AL -
of the exercise period.
## The exercise price of the share options is #i# i AR 2 1T (R (B AT 4R F it
subject fo adjustment in the case of rights IR BHATALAR - AR A
or bonus issues, or other similar changes in & 7N 2 E b 8 L &) iy Al

the Company’s share capital. TR o
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

Share-Based Payments

Batch 1

E—#t

16 July 2007

—E2tE

tA+XH

Fair value at grant date HK$1,697,520/ 7T

B RzAFE

Number of share

options granted 2,880,000
Kt fERiEs e
Exercise price HK$0.437% 7T
1718
Expected volatility 96.95%
TEER R
Expected life 9.99 yearsF
TEHAEHA
Risk-free rafe 4.790%
R
Expected dividend yield Nil
TEHAE #R = Eas

The fair value of the 5,040,000 share options
granted during the year ended 30 June 2008
amounted to HK$2,721,000 had been charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 30 June 2008. The fair value of opfions
granted was calculated using the Binominal Model.
The expected voldtility is used the 5-year, weekly
annualized volatility of the underlying stock. Risk
free rate represents the 10-year yields to maturity of
respective Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note as at
the valuation date. Batch 1 is granted to Director,
Batch 2-4 is granted to Employees.

The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 5,040,000 additional
new ordinary shares of HKS$0.10 each, with
aggregate proceeds before related issue expenses
of approximately HK$2,167,200.

As at the datfe of this annual report, the tfotal
number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme was 18,972,000, representing
approximately 5.6% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

25. I REET S8
(b) BRRESE (2)

R 242 KE
Share option grant date
IBRERL A
Batch 2 Batch 3 Batch 4
Bt E=H g
16 July 2007 19 July 2007 19 July 2007
—ETEE —EBtF —2BtHF
tA+7<H tA+hH tAthH
HK$738,961/4 7T HKS$168,736/57T HK$115,553/8 7T
1,440,000 400,000 320,000
HKS$0.437%8 7T HKS$0.437% 7T HK$0.437% 7T
96.95% 96.95% 96.95%
4.98 yearsF 4.98 yearsF 2.97 yearst
4.790% 4.801% 4.801%
Nil Nil Nil
i i i3
BE_ZTZT N\FA=THIEFE

# it 2 5,040,0008% & ik i 2 A F
B/52,721,00087T - WER =T
ENFARA=THILFEZGAE
MR - B2 AFETIR
ZIEAEXEE o FREKE T A A
HERO 2 AFRERAEH 2iF
SRR o EEREENTE AR
HAEERXSMESRRIMZ K
o - HEBRERNES - B
“ENHBRERMERET -

REBRARBRERAERE  BH
TREHRITEBRESE®RET
5,040,000 & A% m 50.107% 7T
2N E BB - SRR
E(MEREREETRA) D
2,167,200% 7T °

EAFRA - A HBERER S B
77 8 % £ 48 2% 7318,972,0005%
REEXR2AR 2FEHITRMH
5.6% °
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26. RESERVES

(@

(b)

The Group

EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

26.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 43 of this annual

report.

The Company

At 30 June 2007 and
1 July 2007
Issue of share (nofe 24)
Share issue expenses
Equity-seftled share opfion
arrangements (nofe 25)
Loss for the year

At 30 June 2008
and 1 July 2008

Loss for the year

At 30 June 2009

REERLFRA=TH
R=EZLFLA—H
BTk (E24)
RiA%RX
DA S e
Bibugzs: (E25)
EEER

R=BEN\EAAZTHR
“2F/\EtA-H

FEERR

REBBAEAAZTH

7 1
(o) x&EHE

AEERBERBEFEZRHFER
HEHHBHNAFRISE 247

AMAEDE -

(b) AAF
Share premium Option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
RIEER BRERE £ -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TATL TATL TAL THAL
25,291 - (37.944) (12,653)
5,762 - - 5,762
(869) - - (869)
- 2,721 - 2,721
- - (983) (983)
30,184 2,721 (38,927) (6,022)
- - (3,824) (3,824)
30,184 2,721 (42,751) (9.846)
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26. RESERVES (Continued)

27.

(b) The Company

The share premium account of the Company
includes (i) premium arising from the new issue of
shares in the current and prior years netted of share
issue expenses; and (ii) the difference between the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation upon listing in
July 2000 over the nominal value of the share capital
of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

Under section 34 of the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the special reserve and share
premium account is available for distribution
fo shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company and no
distribution may be paid to shareholders out of
the special reserve and share premium account
unless, immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Such leases
are negotiated for the ferms ranging from one fo three
years.

At 30 June 2009, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

Within one year —FA
In the second fo fifth years, FEEERF
inclusive (BIEEEMF)

EX=IC ),
(b) EAR(E)

AAElZ R ERBEGOARF
EREFEHTHRES 2 SEN
BRAXD BT  R(iDRIER=
TTTFLA FHEET2EESE
HETEEZ B ARER ZREE
EFERRTEARBRZARRR
RZEEZEEE -

RIEFSHSE R BERIMME -
R A B B4 (B AR AT 0 Uk T A
R AN ARRBMABZAE -
BIE - REREHEED KSR
REEHR  ARRIFRENERD
BEBEER 2HHRER - BRI
15 5 455 ol (ki 8 2 B £ 0 B iR 1R AR
ER D IRSR RS ©

27. REMANLH

ARBERBEERORFERETHAE
MERATES - EHEZNEREHN
F-E=%-

RZZBEZAFRA=1TH - RETAIHHE

LAY AEEERUTFHRISZE
REEENESEENOT :
Group
rEE

2009 2008

—EEhEF T N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

1,201 951

92 75

1,293 1.326
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28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

29.

30.

(@

®)

The Company had contingent liabilities in respect
of corporate guarantees for banking facilities
granted fo certain subsidiaries in the aggregate
amount of HK$18,300,000 (2008: HK$18,300,000).
At the balance sheet date, such facilities were not
utilised by the subsidiaries (2008: Nil). No financial
liabilities will be recorded for the above guarantee
given to bank as in the opinion of directors, the
fair value of financial guarantee contract was not
material.

At 30 June 2009, the Group had executed
performance bonds of approximately HK$128,000
(2008: HK$328,000) in respect of certain services
provided by the Group.

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease arrangements, detailed in
note 27,the Group had no significant capital commitments
at the balance sheet date.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the fransactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following fransactions with a director during the year:

Interest paid fo a director XNTFT—REEZFE

Note:

(@

Interest was charged at Hong Kong dollar prime lending
rate per annum.

AR R M RE

28. ARE

(a) ﬁ“ﬂ?fﬁ%*ﬁ%“ﬂ%ﬁtﬁz
ROEBEANERELHZA
?‘E‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ%%@%ﬁL
18, 3000007%773(75@%/\£E5
18,300,000/ 7L) - R&EEH - Mt
BRAARIREHAZZER(ZZE
NE &) - E‘Jtéi?$,§\ﬁ A A
RITERZ M BRERZ A FELD
EX IRIERBEERBRSHBA

(b) RZZETZAFAA=1+H ZKE.
RAEEREHRZETRBEE
B 29 1R 3128, OOO/’%TE(fyy)\
£ : 328,000/ 7T) °

29, HFIE

BRETEE27 it 2 B2 ZHE - REER
BEBRYEmEREAALE o

30. BEALRS

Bt EM B ImRM AL 2R 5 K&
RAFE  REBE-FEFETUTR

5
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThEF —ZT)N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
BaE FET FAT
(@) - 126
B 5

(a) MERBTREEMNRFEEFH -
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SIGNIFICANT POST BALANCE SHEET 31. “FEHEEE
EVENTS
On 8 June 2009, the Company entfered info two subscription RZFBFEAFANANB ARAADHIHAE
agreements (the “Subscription Agreements”) with China China Dynamic Enterprises Limited
Dynamic Entferprises Limited and Araucarea Holdings KAraucarea Holdings Limited
Limited respectively (the “Noteholders”). The Subscription (rmf%ﬁ/\”ﬁiﬁﬁ ﬁn B 1A SRE
Agreements were completed on 22 July 2009 pursuant # - REBBER=ZEZENFELA=T
fo which, the Company issued fwo non-interest bearing —H nﬁ Bt ARRBTASELE
convertible notes to the Noteholders in the aggregate 25,000,0007% 7T 2 1~ Hf 5 F 8 AT #2 A% 5% 4%
principal amount of HK$25,000,000 (the *Notes”).The Notes (RE])  ZEBBEABRR-_ZThEL
entitled the Noteholders to convert the principal amount of A-t-RaEREE—S——FtA=
the Notes into the shares of the Company at a conversion T—HEIHBEA - ERAFHR0121ETZ
price of HK$0.121 per share at any fime on or after 22 July R BT 7E'5$ TZ@Eﬁ%J& AR
2009 and up to the maturity date on 29 July 2011. Details of RIS %:WK —TTAFAAT=H
the terms and condifions of the Notes have been stated in TEZRE
an announcement of the Company dated 12 June 2009.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. @l LA v 747
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEH  SESHTAEZER@EQRT :
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
30 June 2009 —EEAFEARA=TH
Financial assets LREE
Group
iy
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
BATEGAESEZEREE
- designated Available-
as such Held-to- for-sale
upon initial - held for maturity Loans and financial
recognition frading  investments  receivables assets Total
-RIF AftHE
BRREE -BEEE HZEIGRE BRREUX SRER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr THET TAT TAT AT FET
Trade receivables JEYE Z B8Rk - - - 15,203 - 15,203
Financial assets FTATERTE
included in }Qﬁ&ﬁm
prepayments, EMIE 2
deposits and SRHEE
other receivables - - - 3,663 - 3,663
Available-forsales A HERE
investments - - - - - -
Equity investments & AF(ERTA
at fair value through ~ B# 2 & EHEE
profit or loss - 810 - - - 810
Pledged deposifs EERER - - - 6,600 - 6,600
Cash and cash BekRe
equivalents ZEEA - - - 11,462 - 11,462
- 810 - 36,928 - 37,738
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32.

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

(Continued)

30 June 2009
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities
included in
other payables
and accruals

AT E SRR
STAEMREN A
REtAE
ZEREE

ST E s D
NEEH KRESBHTAEZEREMENOT :
—ERAEAASHE
ERERE

Group
AEH

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
RAFEGABRZZSREAE

- designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial - held for amortised
recognition trading cost Total
—REE 1R 5H R A< B B
BREEE —REEH ZEMas Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$*000
THET THET THET TET
- - 5,181 5,181
- - 11,130 11,130
- - 16,311 16,311
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32.

(Continued)
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ST E 2D HE )

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REERH SBEcmIAZEEEMAWNT
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: (4&)
(Continued)
30 June 2008 —ZEENFARA=1+H
Financial assets TRIEE
Group
AEE
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
BATEF A\ ER eRMEE
- designated Available-
as such Held-fo- forsale
upon initial - held for maturity Loans and financial
recognition frading  investments  receivables assets Total
—RF A&
BREIEE —RKEEE HZRIHERE ERREKR PREE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET THET TAT THEL AL FET
Trades receivables  [EUE R - - - 4,455 - 4,455
Financial assets AR - ke
included in RE AR
prepayments, LEREE
deposifs and
other receivables - - - 6,043 - 6,043
Availableforsales  AIEHERE
investments - - - - = =
Pledged deposits ~ EEHFR - - - 10,249 - 10,249
Cash and cash RekBe
equivalents Z(EEA - - - 18,792 - 18,792
- - - 39,539 - 39,539
30 June 2008 —ZEENFARNA=1H
Financial liabilities TREBE
Group
REHE
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
BEATES ABRZ ERAE
- designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial - held for amortised
recognition frading cost Total
— R R SHR AT BR
R E —REER ZERBE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHIT FAT FAT FAT
Trade payables I E SR - - 3,303 3,303
Financial liabilities T A B A BT IR
included in RIEGTEE
other payables and ZEFAas
accruals - - 11,449 11,449
- - 14,752 14,752
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. €@t T E 795 %8 (2)

(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEH  SBEcmIAZEEEMAWNT -
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: (#&
(Continued)
30 June 2009 —EZAFERA=ZTH
Financial assets tHEE
Company
QT
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
BATEAA G eREE
- designated Available-
as such Held-to- forsale
upon initial - held for maturity Loans and financial
recognition frading  investments receivables assets Total
NI g
R —FHEEE HEIERE  ERREKH TREE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET THT FHET THT FET
Due from FEUR B
subsidiaries ARFIE - - - 19,990 - 19,990
Financial assets SABRRE - B
included in RE A YR
prepayments, LEREE
deposifs and
other receivables - - - - - -
Pledged deposits ~ EHEHFR - - - 3,198 - 3,198
Cash and cash BekAe
equivalents ZEER - - - 782 - 782

- - - 23,970 - 23,970
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
(Continued)

30 June 2009
Financial liabilities

“EZNAFARA=TH
SREE

Company
AT

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
BRATFEFABRZERBE

- designated
as such
upon initial
recognition
—RIE

TR 1

-
E

HKS$'000
THIT

Financial liabilities ST A A ER IR
included in REEFTAE
other payables Zemas
and accruals

Financial

liabilities at

- held for amortised
frading cost Total

TR SHAK AR B BR
—HEEE ZEeRaE #BEt
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET T
- 313 313

- 313 313
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. €@t T E 795 %8 (2)

(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REER  SESMITAZERABRT :
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: (#&
(Continued)
30 June 2008 —TENFAA=1+H
Financial assets SRIEE
Company
/NG
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
RATEF A BR SREE
- designated Available-
as such Held-to- forsale
upon initial - held for maturity Loans and financial
recognition frading  investments receivables assets Total
ik AfHE
HRIEIETE —HEEE RIIERE ERRERR SREE wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET FET TET FET
Due from NG
subsidiaries - - - 14,553 - 14,553
Financial assets FABMNRE - &
included in REMRERTIA
prepayments, LEREE
deposits and
other receivables - - - 18 - 18
Pledged deposits B HAER - - - 7,004 - 7,004
Cash and cash RekRe
equivalents Z(EEA - - - 3,657 - 3,657

- - - 25,232 - 25,232
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. €T E VS ¥ (&

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REER  SESMITAZERABRT :
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: (%)
(Continued)
30 June 2008 —EZNFXA=1+H
Financial liabilities ERIBE
Company
Vi N/NG]

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
RATESABRZEMAR

- designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial - held for amortised
recognition frading cost Total
—RIE 1R SRS BR
MRS E —EEE ZE A Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET FHT FHT
Financial liabilities T AH A AT FRIE
included in REEFTAE
other payables ZERarts
and accruals - - 408 408

- - 408 408
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EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

“EENFARAZTHLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise inferest bearing loans and other
payables and accruals.The main purpose of these financial
instruments is fo raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as frade receivables and frade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in
relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.5 fo the financial
statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant inferest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities with a floating interest rate as at 30
June 2008 and 2009. The Group’s results and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market inferest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal fransactional currency exposures
as the sales and purchases of the Group were mainly
fransacted in United States dollars (*USD"), Renminbi
("RMB"), Japanese Yen (“Yen"), Singapore dollars ("SGD"),
Australian dollars ("AUD"), Canadian dollars ("*CAD"), and
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"). Approximately 75% (2008:
66%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
ofher than the functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, and almost 97% (2008: 88%) of costs are
denominated in the units’ other functional currency.

During the years ended 30 June 2008 and 2009, the
exchange rate of USD and Yen were rather stable.
Approximately 8% (2008: 16%) of the Group's sales are
denominated in these currencies.

AR R M RE

33.

Fr %5 R B3R B 1R R

BOTAETAN AEEZIESZHTAR
BB 2R EEMENREARER -
aZ%i\ﬁEIﬂZIEEEﬁE%ZSEIZ%

KB AKEEZRAMEREE
&EE-(ZZDFEHQEE A ENERF) SEE A
HEBES -

AEBSRIAMEEAZIERRAE S
mEFEERER - INERER - EERRERE
PECRER EFeRITAAEREERS
ZERBBER  ZEBRBANAT o &
SEETETREABZ @ BRANUTB
H&MTE2.5 -

RERERXRER

EEBR T N\R-_ZETNFAA=TH
WEZFHHEABEZEREREERE
& - REBRAIBHHEERKEREHEY
PEMGHREBTE -

S L B

BRALEZHERRBEEUSET ([
Tl ) AR (TARK]) -BE (T
RE] ) -~ #mgor ( [Hnge) ) R
T (DBl ) e (Tl ) RET
(BL] ) £17R5 @ BARERERER
ZEWRERE - NREBAT75% (ZTT)\F
66%) ZIHENEITIHE 2 EBBE 2 EE
B MINEREE - MERI7% (TN
F : 88%) ZAXARBIAELL 2 e & HE LASH
BE¥EME -

RBE_ZENFR_ZETAFAA=1H
JJ:@FQ’FN 2 %E&HZE’};&’EE%E RN
£EK8% (ZTBNF : 16%) ZHERZ
EEWEE -
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FINANCIAL RISK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in
the exchange rafes of SGD, AUD, CAD and RMB to HKD,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group'’s profit
before fax.

30 June 2009 —EERFERA=TH

If HKD weakens against SGD i 5 7T 5 BT AN T 55
If HKD strengthens against SGD s 78 7T 5 R NI T E o
If HKD weakens against AUD fis A 7T H ORI 55

If HKD strengthens against AUD 78 7T SR T B8

If HKD weakens against CAD fis A 7T 5 hnc i 55

If HKD strengthens against CAD fis 78 7T 5 I T Ese

If HKD weakens against RMB BT 5 AR5

If HKD strengthens against RMB BT AR R

30 June 2008 —EENFEXRA=T1H

If HKD weakens against SGD s A 7T A BT AN T 55
If HKD strengthens against SGD i 78 7T 5 BT AN T8 o
If HKD weakens against AUD fis A 7T SR 855

If HKD strengthens against AUD fis A 7T H R E5R

If HKD weakens against CAD fis A 7T 5, i eg5s

If HKD strengthens against CAD fis A 7T 5, T o

If HKD weakens against RMB AT AR5

If HKD strengthens against RMB (VBN L

The Group requires all its operating units to use forward
currency contracts to eliminate the foreign currency
exposures for currencies other than US dollars and on
any individual transactions in excess of HKS$500,000 or
equivalent, for which payment is anticipated more than one
month after the Group has entfered info a firm commitment
for a sale or purchase. The forward currency contracts
must be in the same currency as the hedged item. It is
the Group’s policy not to enfer into forward confracts until
a firm commitment is in place.

The Group has no foreign currency contracts outstanding
at 30 June 2008 and 2009.
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R E R B R RBE
(%)
SRR (42)

TRETEZHNEMBERG R TEZ
T AREE 2 B A A C%ZE&T*MD?E
RTT  MTTARAREERHE AR

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity
ExtH - BBAGRR  fEmiEgmnS
(FEk) @ (A2 (r4)
% HKS$’'000 HK$’000
% FHET FHET
5% 71 71
(5%) 7 an
5% 2 2
(5%) ) )
5% (34) (34)
(5%) 34 34
5% 720 720
(5%) (720) (720)
5% (102) (102)
(&%) 102 102
5% (5) ©)
(&%) 5 5
5% 42 42
(5%) (42) (42)
5% (388) (388)
(&%) 388 388
REBREMALEEN - 5 H8500,000/ 7T
3[R % & F I 7B A — @ B A AR R Z BRI

%F$EI§T16E§EE§<?¢§{§%L,H§E #
MBS ERRTTAINEE 2N ERR - EMETE
B KA BT IE B Zfﬁﬁﬁﬂ © KEZBZ
RS HEEARAB TR LEHAH

RZZEENR_ZFZAFAAA=1+H AEEL
EAEMKRERZINERBEL -
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EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

FINANCIAL RISK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In additional, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis. For transactions that
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
ferms without the specific approval of the management.

The credit risk of the Group'’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
financial assets arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer, by geographical region and by industry sector.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Group.

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors ifs risk fo a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning fool. This fool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

Infernally generated cash flow and bank borrowings are
the general sources of funds fo finance the operations of
the Group. The majority of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject fo floating rates and are renewable annually.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure that it has adequate financial resources to meet
its financial obligations. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit
lines and sufficient bank deposits fo meet its short ferm
cash requirements. The Group’s liquidity risk management
includes making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources.

MANAGEMENT  33.

R E R B R RBE
(%)
EERER

AEEERERRMEBREZFE=TTET
R5 o NEE 2 BR B PTA BRIARREAETT
R 2 EPHAREELERER ° Mo &
SEeRHEEZEIR AR o AR
BEBMN IR EREEZRSME @ A&
B3 N NS B B E M AT R AR I
H o

AEERARZGHFROMELEZ EMESRE
E (BREReEKRSEEY  AIHEESH
BE  BATFEFABRZBEAKRE - Bt
R ETITETR) 2&SEERRN
SRR ETAZRME -

HRAEEERERRARMEEBREZFE=T
RS WHAERR - FERRETE
AREP - R RITHRES - AEEWESE
ANEERBREFRER

MENE & [ B2

AEEERERADESHEI TAERES
SRRER WTEZEEESRT AR SR
BE (WMEKEZEN) ZBIHAARE

R A =}
KEZHERE °

NHELEZREREMRITEERAEER
EBED 2 —RIR - AEBAB D RTT
MERFHMNERGFEINRTFESR - A&
B AT E2ESNRN - UERER R
WHBERARNERERE - AEEE
EEBEFATHBB 2CAREER N
HBES2BEN  TABRMZRITE
R AENERREFE - AEEZRD
HEREEEELFREBARTHRER
DHESTR
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Confinued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the balance sheet date, based on the confracted

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group
30 June 2009

Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

30 June 2008

Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

MANAGEMENT  33.

(%)

RBESRERE)

RS IR B R RBUR

REEHR - AEEZ SRAEREBEEFIAR
BEIRRIBZ BIHERAT -

rEE
—EThFEARA=TH
Held to
Less than 3 fo less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
RERGIE =fiRZ
B2 PR=@EA PR+ =M@A —ZHF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT THET AT TET
R E RN - 5,181 - - 5,181
HEENT e R E - 11,130 - - 11,130
- 16,311 - - 16,311
—EENFAA=1A
Held to
Less than 3 fo less than 1105
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
BRERFAE = EES
Bl & PIR=@EAR PRIT=fER —ZRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT THT TAT FET
ERE SRR - 1,932 1,371 - 3,303
HiERARESBE - 11,449 - - 11,449
- 13,381 1,371 - 14,752
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EPRO LIMITED ZEHR A A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Confinued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities
as at the balance sheet date, based on the confracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

B Efe E IR B AR MUK
(%)
REBEEERZ)

REEH - ARRZERABBEREBEETAR
BEIRRIBZ BIHERAT -

S
e —EEAEAASTE
Held to
Less than 3 to less than 105
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
RERRUE ZEAZE
B2 PR=Z@EA PR+ =M@A —ZHF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THBT THET THET FET
Other payables and accruals  EtfERZBREEE - 313 - - 313
- 313 - - 313
30 June 2008 —EENFAA=1H
Held to
Less than 3 fo less than 1105
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
BRERG A =EAZE
EE R SR=[EA  PRT=MEA —E0F 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THL FEr
Other payables and accruals  EftENFIEREEE - 408 - - 408
_ 408 - - 408
Equity price risk B EE R b

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the level of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. As
at the balance sheet date, the Group has not significant
equity price risk.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern and fo maintain healthy capital ratios in order fo
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

REERER A ERBEREOKT REE
SEREDTEHRAES AFEARD 2,
B MEHA - AEED R EAREEEE

B -
EXER
AEBEAEE X ERBARBAZEY

FEKEERNRERRBRZERLE  AX
FEXBRBRERFRREHE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders of issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net
debtincludes trade payables, other payables and accruals
and deferred revenue less pledged deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity aftributable to
equity holders of the Company. The gearing rafios as at
the balance sheet dates were as follows:

Trade payables FERTE S5 BR

Ofher payables and accruals

Deferred revenue ERE W 2

Less: Pledged deposits w o BEARER
Cash and cash equivalents ReMASEMER

Net debt BISFE

Equity attributable fo equity holders #2535 8 ARE(H

Total capital HBENR
Capital and net debt BERRIERFE
Gearing ratio BARB B ®

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 2.4 fo the financial
statements, due to the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs and the change in segment identification during the
year, certain comparative figures and items and balances
in the segment information have been adjusted and
reclassified fo conform with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 24 September 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 45

HAtENFOR R RE

AR R I RE

Year ended 30 June 2009 HZE=—ZEFAEAA=1THILFE

33. IR EREBZERIEK
(&)
AEEBTEHEERER KB BERE
TEH AR - REE ] e AR M AR FIREE 2 R
8 MRRBEBBEITHRD 2E S AR
FEE RGN -
$$lﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmi(uﬁn$@%u
BEARNMEERFEFNE) BEREAR o
FEBEEMNEZER Em%ﬁlﬁ&%
FrEE BElaE (REEREARRE R
ReFEEER) - BRBEARARARFE
AELH#ER - REER - EXAELED
™
Group
AEH
2009 2008
—EENF —EEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
5,181 3,303
11,130 11,449
568 570
(6.600) (10,249)
(11,462) (18,792)
(1.183) (13.719)
23,771 27,107
23,771 27,107
22,588 13,388
N/ATEA N/ATE A
34, HLEREF
BANES TS SRR M AE2.2 % 2. AFTi#E— R AR
B AR R RIS T B B RS
ZARBEAREHSREBHE  GET
R FAEAERFRLEFHE - UKE
RERZZ2FAR °
35. BIEHmK 2 HA

BBHBREN_ZETZNFLA-_TNEES
BHUAERIRAETE -
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Five Year Financial Summary R EEEERHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

RESULTS
REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income and gains
Selling and distribution costs
Technical expenses
Administrative expenses
Ofher expenses
Finance costs
Share of profits

and losses of

associates

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of
the Company
Minority interests

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
MINORITY INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MINORITY INTERESTS

£
LON
B miHERA

EF
HAth WA Ko o g
HHE R R A
B E
TRER
Hth &
BERA
DMETHREZ
B K EE

Nl

B as, (EE)

I

FERBM (FR)

AT &7 (S

ARAFRERRR

L HRRE S

BE BERIH

IR RS
BERE
SlEvit

1B e

DER

TXREAEEROTEAMRFREZREEREE
BEERVBEREREHE  DRSEEAKEZE
REERRBRE  UKBEENEFD

e

Year ended 30 June
BZEAA=THLEE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EEAE —ZTT)N\F —TTt+F —TTF —ZTTHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET T FET
66,984 50,825 61,538 86,478 54,822
(31,014)  (23.816)  (31.717)  (62.623)  (33,562)
35,970 27,009 29,821 23,855 21,260
1,819 10,456 2,207 2,298 6,763
(689) (983) (1,118) (949) (906)
(20,394)  (13,696)  (10,207) (9.406)  (11,489)
(20,173)  (26989)  (19,705)  (19,983)  (19,543)
- - - - a9
2 (213) (157) (798) (952)
- - ) (83) 534
(3.469) (4.416) 834 (5,066) (4,352)
- 5,907 Q) (345) (45)
(3.469) 1,491 825 (5.411) (4,397)
(3.419) 1,713 825 (5.411) (4.397)
(50) (222) = s =
(3,469) 1,491 825 (5.411) (4,397)
40,650 42,429 43,504 45,017 58,503
(16,879)  (15322)  (32432)  (33,634)  (50,590)
- (50) - - -
23,771 27,057 11,072 11,383 7,913
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